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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Asian Capital Resources
(Holdings) Limited collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for the purpose of giving information with regard to
Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited. The directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement in this report misleading;
and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived
at after due and careful consideration and are founded on
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESEReS

| am pleased to present the annual results of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

Despite a rather challenging year for the Management in 2012,
whereby the World faced various financial and economic
instabilities, coupled with the austerity measures imposed by
the Government of the People’s Republic of China on housing,
which had material impact on the end users of our internet
platform, the Management nevertheless, is pleased to state
that with all the efforts given into repositioning of the market
focus and the regenerating of revenue drives of the Group, we
have completed in the early quarter of 2013 with a solid start
by raising new capital from the successful placement of
HK$65 million by new shares issued, and the entering into the
management contract with a PRC operator, which provides a
scalable development platform for the IPTV operations in near
future.

During the period under review, because of the difficult general
market conditions, the Management had taken a more
conservative approach in terms of expansion and marketing of
the IPTV division compared to an aggressive one that was
originally planned. The conservative strategy led to a low risk
high reward plan of promoting IPTV via the bundling of value
added services. Hence, the Board was actively seeking a
strategic partner that would enhance the growth of IPTV and
its value added services platform as well as the generating of a
new stream of revenue.

With the expertise of operating the IPTV division, the group is
providing a company, Guangdong Yingxin, with management
services. Guangdong Yingxin is an Internet service provider as
well as value added services provider. One of the services
Guangdong Yingxin provides is VOD (video on demand) and
the Company will leverage its expertise from its IPTV division
to assist Guangdong Yingxin operate their operations with
efficiency and realize their true value and creating more value
for the Group.

Via the revenue generated by the IPTV division, the new
business management services, and other assets from the
group it has sufficient cashflow generated to operate its
business as a going concern. The Company does not have
any financial difficulties to an extent that may seriously impair
the Company’s ability to continue its business.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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The Board, looking forward, views that by leveraging on the
strategic alliance with Guangdong Yingxing and with the
bundling of other value added services to the existing IPTV
model, it will be able to enhance the company’s incremental
business and future value.

During the past year, there was a 5.6% decrease in the
turnover of the group for 2012, and the loss for the year
increased from approximate HK$17,419,000 of 2011 to
approximate HK$ 18,663,000 of 2012. Take into consideration
of the one time non-recurring gain of approximately
HK$24,110,000 from the discontinued operation of 2011, the
actual loss was reduced by HK$22,866,000 in 2012 instead.

On behalf of the Board, we would also like to take this
opportunity to thank the Group’s clients, suppliers, vendors,
banks business partners, consultants and shareholders for
their support and trust generously given to the Group. The
Board also expresses gratitude to the management and staff
for their work and dedication during the past years.

Chu Yat Hong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENwm MO

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover and loss for the year

The total turnover of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 was approximately HK$6,574,000 (2011:
HK$6,964,000) which was slightly decreased by approximately
5.6% as compared to that of the previous financial year.

The audited consolidated loss from operations for the year
ended 31 December 2012 was approximately HK$18,663,000
which has increased by 7.14% compared with the
corresponding period last year, HK$17,419,000. Take into
consideration the one time non-recurring gain of approximately
HK$24,110,000 from discontinue operation of 2011, the
actual loss was reduced by approximately HK$22,866,000 in
2012 instead.

The intangible assets of the Group are comprised of the IPTV
permit, namely the “Broadcast of Audio-Video Program On
Web Permit” (15 2. A8 15 F #E 1R £ &0 B 57 0] %) (the “Permit”)
currently held by Guangzhou Wavecom Communications and
Advertising Limited (“Guangzhou Wavecom”). Guangzhou
Wavecom is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
possession of the Permit allows Guangzhou Wavecom’s
subsidiary South Pearl Limited, to operate the Group’s IPTV
division in the greater southern China region. The Permit has
been granted by Guangzhou Television Broadcast Microwave
General Station (“Guangzhou Television Station”) to
Guangzhou Wavecom. Possession of the Permit allows, and is
a prerequisite to South Pearl Limited being able to act as the
exclusive service provider of Guangzhou Television Station’s
programmes, advertising and other IPTV services within the
greater southern China region. The Permit commenced on 1
October 2007 and will expire on 30 September 2015.

Financial cost

The financial cost of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 was approximately HK$5,662,000 (2011:
HK$6,735,000) which was decreased by approximately
15.93% as compared to that of the same period of last year.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
borrowing consists of an amount due to the Company’s
immediate holding company of HK$25,859,000, and an
amount due to a director of HK$5,813,000. The Group had a
cash balance of approximately HK$46,000 (2011:
HK$655,000).

The Group continues to adopt a prudent treasury policy to
maintain its cash balance either in Hong Kong Dollars, or in
the local currencies of the operating subsidiaries, maintaining
a minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks.

The issued share capital of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 has increased from HK$108,268,799 as at
31 December 2011 to HK$138,551,890.

Gearing Ratio

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the gearing ratio of
the Group, expressed as a percentage of net debt divided by
the total capital plus net debt, was 213.39% (2011: 337.72%).

Employee and remuneration policies

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group employed
a total of 16 employees (as at 31 December 2011: 17), of
which 3 were located in Hong Kong and the remaining 13
were located in the PRC. The Group’s remuneration policies
are in line with the prevailing market practices and formulated
on the basis of performance and experience of the employees.
The salary and related benefits of the employees are rewarded
on a performance related basis and the general remuneration
structure of the Group is subject to review annually.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

Deregistration and Winding-Up of various Subsidiaries
in the Group

The Board has resolved that, in order to reduce the operating
costs of the Group, those subsidiaries within the Group which
no longer add value to, nor generate any income attributable
to the Group, should be deregistered, or voluntarily wound up.

Those subsidiary which is currently in the deregistration
process is: Sinobase Asia Limited.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENwm MO

Those subsidiaries which have been deregistered during the
period are: Asian Information Resources Consultants Limited
and Sino Resource Investments Limited.

Those subsidiaries which are currently being voluntarily wound
up are: Asian Information Investment Consulting Limited,
BuyCollection.com Limited, and Myhome Network Limited.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Board wishes to report that, despite a rather challenging
year for the Management in 2012, whereby the World faced
various financial and economic instabilities, coupled with the
austerity measures imposed by the Government of the
People’s Republic of China on housing, which had material
impact on the end users of our internet platform, the
Management nevertheless, is pleased to state that with all the
efforts given into repositioning of the market focus and the
regenerating of revenue drives of the Group, we have
completed in the early quarter of 2013 with a solid start by
raising new capital from the successful placement of HK$65
million by new shares issued, and the entering into the
management contract with a PRC operator, which provides a
scalable development platform for the IPTV operations in near
future.

During the period under review, because of the difficult general
market conditions, the Management had taken a more
conservative approach in terms of expansion and marketing of
the IPTV division compared to an aggressive one that was
originally planned. The conservative strategy led to a low risk
but high reward plan of promoting IPTV via the bundling of
value added services. Hence, the Board was actively seeking
a strategic partner that would enhance the growth of IPTV and
its value added services platform as well as the generating of a
new stream of revenue.

With the expertise of operating the IPTV division, the group is
providing a company, Guangdong Yingxin, with management
services. Guangdong Yingxin is an Internet service provider as
well as value added services provider. One of the services
Guangdong Yingxin provides is VOD (video on demand) and
the Company will leverage its expertise from its IPTV division
to assist Guangdong Yingxin operate their operations with
efficiency and realize their true value and creating more value
for the Group.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Via the revenue generated by the IPTV division, the new
business management services, and other assets from the
group it has sufficient cashflow generated to operate its
business as a going concern. The Company does not have
any financial difficulties to an extent that may seriously impair
the Company’s ability to continue its business.

The Board, looking forward, views that by leveraging on the
strategic alliance with Guangdong Yingxing and with the
bundling of other value added services to the existing IPTV
model, it will be able to enhance the company’s incremental
business and future value.

Information Technology Division

As with broadcasting any medium within the PRC, it requires
diligent effort to satisfy the ever so changing complex rules
and regulations it adheres to. The company has invested in
the effort of keeping up to date to any changes and remains
as an approved IPTV provider. During the course of the year
the company was searching for strategic alliance with a
partner that would help the Company be better positioned to
have a more dynamic IPTV platform that enables for
deployment of value added services which will in turn lead to a
greater customer base.

During the 4Q the Company, the Subsidiary and Guangdong
Yingxin entered into the Management Agreement pursuant to
which the Subsidiary agreed to provide management service
(through Guangzhou Wavecom) to Guangdong Yingxin. The
Subsidiary will receive all the net profits after taxation of the
Guangdong Yingxin as the management fee. Guangdong
Yingxin is a company principally engaged in building the last-
mile digital cable networks for residential real estate projects
and the subsequent management of such network including,
among others, provision of value-added services and content
to end users of such networks, which also includes Video on
Demand (VOD). Yingxin provides coverage of three major
cities in China: Guangzhou, Shenzhen and Beijing. This
management service provided by the Company is viewed as a
synergy that compliments both the Company and Guangdong
Yingxing. This arrangement is viewed as utilizing the strong
background of both companies; where the group will provide
the expert operating and market knowledge from operating
IPTV division and Guangdong Yingxing can concentrate on
deployment and maintaining their solid digital network
backbone. In addition, Yingxing can further assist the
company in research and development, and deployment of
other value added services on the Company’s existing IPTV
platform. This synergy is maximizing the efficient deployment
of both companies’ existing resources as well as creating new
ones.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENwm MO

In managing Guangdong Yingxing, the Company believes it
can assist by helping Yingxing to reach a higher level of
profitability and to create more value in the company. This is
because the Company views the PRC Internet market is a
market that has yet to reach its maturity. According to the
statistics provided by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the People’s Republic of China (MIIT) the
number of Internet users in PRC will reach over 20 million with
an Internet penetration rate of only 11.5%. When comparing
to the penetration rate of the OECD member countries’ 16%,
it can be viewed as a market yet to reach its maturity. In
addition, Yingxing currently only has coverage over 3 major
cities. It would be able to increase a substantial amount of
business by expanding their network coverage across the
nation since the MIIT is now accepting new applications for
the Nationwide ISP provider license. Furthermore, Focused
Marketing can be viewed as another value added services to
be considered. Customer data of the websites they visited and
programs they watched can be collected and retrieved from
the technical platforms and can be used as a tool for analyzing
the market interests and concerns. Specific groups with points
of interest can be identified which in turn would serve as a
valuable asset for providing specific focused marketing that
can be deployed as a new service.

The Management believes it is in a better position to achieve a
higher level of performance together with the deployment of
other value added services.

Financial Consultancy

The Group’s Financial Consultancy division is now
concentrating its efforts on the aforementioned business
management services that it is providing to Guangdong
Yingxing.

In addition, apart from the aforementioned operations, the
Group continues to research, develop and explore investment
opportunities which are strategic to its business operations
and which will contribute significantly to the return of the
Company’s shareholders.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

0

(L)

Placement of 100,000,000 Shares

On 28 January 2013, the Company published an
announcement on “COMPLETION OF PLACING OF
NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE” whereby
The Board announced that the conditions of the Placing
have been fulfilled and the completion of the Placing took
place on 28 January 2013, where a total of 100,000,000
Placing Shares have been successfully placed by the
Placing Agent to not less than six Placees pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement.

Management Agreement to Guangdong Yinxin

On 31 December 2012, the Company, the Subsidiary
and Guangdong Zhicheng entered into the Management
Agreement pursuant to which the Subsidiary agreed to
provide management service (through Guangzhou
Wavecom) to Guangdong Yingxin for a term from the
date of approval of the Management Agreement at the
EGM to 31 December 2014 and the Subsidiary will
receive all the net profits after taxation of the Guangdong
Yingxin as management fee. The Company will procure
the transfer of 9% equity interests in the Subsidiary to
Guangdong Zhicheng (or its nominees) as consideration.

As both Guangdong Zhicheng and Guangdong Yingxin
are connected persons, the transactions contemplated
under the Management Agreement will constitute
continuing connected transactions, and a discloseable
and connected transaction under the GEM Listing Rules
and will be subject to the approval of the Independent
Shareholders.

The Circular for the “CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS AND DISCLOSEABLE AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO THE
MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT” was issued and
published on 22 January 2013.

On 18 February, 2013, the Company announced “POLL
RESULT OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING HELD
ON 18 FEBRUARY 2013” whereby the meeting:

(@)

(b)

(©

approved, confirmed and ratified the Management
Agreement and transactions;

approved and confirmed the Annual Caps; and
authorised the Directors to do all necessary acts to give

effect to the Management Agreement, the Annual Caps
and transactions contemplated thereunder.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EENSREEAEBEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yat Hong

Chairman

Mr. Chu, age 29, holds EMBA Master Degree from Zhongshan
University of China. From September 2001 to November
2009, Mr. Chu was Assistant to the Managing Director of Pearl
River Investment Group; July 2005 to October 2009, as
Managing Director of Guangzhou Pearl River Yunsheng Textile
Market Administration Co., Ltd., Guangzhou Pearl River
Commercial Real Estate Management Co. Ltd. and
Guangzhou Pearl River Commercial Logistic Investment Co.
Ltd. From May 2012 until now, as the Deputy Managing
Director of Pearl River Investment Group.

Mr. Xiao Jing

Mr. Xiao Jing, age 32, graduated from the University of
Southern California. He was recruited at International Business
Machines Corporation (IBM) in 2001 as Trading Manger. From
2002 to 2005, he established AB International Co. Ltd., Billion
Image Co. Ltd and Tri-G Co. Ltd respectively in the United
States. In 2006, he founded the Taylor Investment &
Management Consultants Co. Ltd. in China, which mainly
engaged in commercial real estate investment and
development in Mainland China. In addition, Mr. Xiao
established AB International Investment Co. and served as
chairman in U.S.A. From 2009 to present, he serves as
Executive Director of Guangzhou Pearl River Yunsheng Textile
Market Administration Co., Ltd. and Guangzhou Pearl River
Commercial Real Estate Management Co. Ltd.

Mr. Xie Xuan

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Xie, aged 43, joined the Group in 2002. Mr. Xie holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of the Group. He has over
19 years of successful investment and management
experience in the areas of property and logistics in the
People’s Republic of China. He graduated from Jinan
University, the PRC with a degree in International Economics.

Mr. Qiu Yue

Mr. Qiu, aged 43, joined the Company in October 2008. Mr.
Qiu graduated from Zhongshan University, the People’s
Republic of China in 1991, with a Bachelor of Arts degree. Mr.
Qiu has worked in the advertising business for more than 12
years and was the general manager of Guangzhou Wavecom
Communication and Advertising Limited from 1992 to 2006,
and is now the general manager of South Pearl Limited, both
companies having been acquired by the Company on 24
December 2007.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond

Vice Chairman

Mr. Lo, aged 60, is the Principal of an investment and
corporate finance firm with offices in London and Hong Kong.
Trained as a Chartered Accountant in England & Wales, he
also qualified as a Canadian Chartered Accountant. Mr. Lo is
now licensed as a Responsible Officer by the Securities &
Futures Commission of Hong Kong for providing Type 6
(corporate finance) advisory.

Besides the Company, he currently serves as the non-
executive chairman of the Board of Luk Fook Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 0590), and as an
independent non-executive director of Shanghai Zendai
Property Limited ( stock code 0755).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Wu, aged 67, holds a Master degree in Economics. He is
currently a professor, guest lecturer and visiting scholar at a
number of colleges and universities in the PRC and abroad.
He has published more than 262 papers and 18 books in the
areas of economics, finance and management.

Dr. Feng Ke

Dr. Feng, aged 41, joined the Group in October 2008. Dr.
Feng holds a PhD in theoretic economics from the Beijing
University, the People’s Republic of China. Presently he is the
department head and researcher of Real Estates Finance
Research Center, of the Beijing University Economics Faculty.
Dr. Feng is an independent compliance advisor in the publicly
listed company Sky Land Resources Limited, and is an
independent director in the publicly listed company Guang Yu
Development Limited, both companies being listed in the
People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Zhang Daorong

Mr. Zhang, aged 41, is a Certified Public Accountant and
Certified Tax Agent in the People’s Republic of China. He
holds a Bachelor degree in Economics and a Masters degree
in Business Administration. He has over 17 years of
experience in accounting, auditing and taxation. He is
currently a project manager in a firm of certified public
accountants in the PRC.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EENSREEAEBEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Ting Lok

Mr. Lam aged 40, has over 13 years’ experience in the
accounting and financial industry. He has extensive experience
in IPO, M&A, fund raising and corporate advisory. He started
his career in an international audit firm in 1995 and then
devoted himself in the corporate finance and fund
management fields since 2000. Mr. Lam Ting Lok holds a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a charterholder of the Chartered Financial Analyst. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Enterprise
Development Holdings Limited and Wonderful Sky Finance
Group Holdings Limited, both of which are companies listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Mr. Kong Yeuk Hon, John

Senior Accountant

Mr. Kong, aged 54, joined the Group in October 2005. Mr.
Kong holds a Master of Science Degree in Applied Accounting
and Finance from the Baptist University of Hong Kong. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Kong has over 12 years experience
in commercial accounting field.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit/(loss) before
taxation for the year ended 31 December 2012 by principal
activities is as follows:

R
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By Principal activities: REEEBIS
IPTV services BB EAR RS 1,030 (15,089)
Content Solution N A e AR 15 5,544 939
6,574 (16,028)

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and loss before taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2012 by geographical areas
is as follows:
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 36 to 123 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 124.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 9 October 2012, upon receiving application from holders
of HK$66,017,139 Convertible Notes, representing the total
outstanding as at 9 October 2012, the Company issued and
allotted 302,830,911 new shares at the Conversion Price of
HK$0.218/share to them.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the period ended 31 December 2012.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Based on information which is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issuance of this annual
report, the Directors can confirm that at least 25% of the
Company’s total listed issued share capital has at all times
been held by the public, as required by Rule 11.23 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year is set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2011: Nil) in
accordance with the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s articles of association.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year
attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are
as follows:

Sales

the largest customer 56%
Purchases

the largest supplier 87%

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors,
their associates, nor any shareholders who own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five
largest suppliers during the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chu Yat Hong (Chairman)
(joined on 22 November 2012)
Mr. Xiao Jing (joined on 22 November 2012)
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qiu Yue

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond (Vice Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Zhang Daorong

Dr. Feng Ke
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In accordance with Article 87(1) of the articles of association of
the Company, Mr. Zhang Daorong, Mr. Qiu Yue and Mr. Xiao
Jing shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The retiring Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Xiao Jing proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
has service contracts which can be terminated by one month
notice.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

None of the directors had a material interest, in any contract of
significances to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year. For transaction
entered into by the Company after year end with companies
controlled by Mr. Chu Yat Hong, please see “EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD”. Mr. Chu was appointed as
director in November 2012.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or subsisted during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Particulars of retirement benefit schemes are set out in note
3k(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions disclosed in note 27 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements constitute
the connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

The non-executive directors of the Company had reviewed the
connected transactions of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2012 and have confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of Group;

either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favorable than those available to or from independent
third parties;

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions;

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

the aggregate amount of each of these transactions falls
within the de minimis exemption for the connected
transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(A)

Interests and short positions of the Directors in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the Shares, underlying Shares, or
debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571, (“SFO”)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of
HK$0.10 each (the “Shares”) of the Company

fEam i 5E

(A

ESNASREMERZEZ% - HE
I zEHZERRRE

RZE——F+_A=+—H  RFE
ERITHREBEEHARA 1&%5?@&!(&%
RESFKBEGLJE %&Hﬁi%ﬂ*
) %571$%XV*|3)ZHX - FE 8
D REHFFHEES @ )JE%%?"‘%&H;@“
1I*1§U%XV*B%7&8/\*B%DA"7&
RFfZ e ﬁ(@%@ﬁh%&ﬁ}ﬂf
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Number of issued Shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEEEARIBE - 5HRiEstE
Percentage
of the
Company’s
issued
Shares as at
31 December
Through 2012
spouse or EEATR
Directly minor Through —E-CF
beneficially children  controlled  Beneficiary +ZA=+-H
owned  EBEE corgzoratlon of a trust Total ZE¥fRH
EEEGHE AREYX it H; &5 Rt
Directors EF
Mr.ChuYatHong  &—#i%4 - - 546,964,782 - 546964782 39.48%
INoie 1
(Bt 1)
Mr. Xie Xuan MELE - - 546,964,782 - 546,964,782 39.48%
INote 1
(1)
Mr. Qiu Yue L E 15,430,000 - 18,620,436 - 34,050,436 2.46%
Noie2
(Frsz2)
15,430,000 - 565,585,218 - 581,015,218 41.94%
Note 1: The controlled corporation is Glamour House MizE1 : 5% %A A Glamour House

Limited, which is accustomed to acting in
accordance with Mr. Xie Xuan’s instructions
who is its sole director. Mr. Chu Yat Hong holds
90% of the company shares and the company
is the beneficial owner as to 67.18% of Asian
Dynamics International Limited.

Note 2. The controlled corporation is Lucky Peace

Limited, which is incorporated in Samoa, and

which is 100% wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu Yue.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including any interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

(B) Interests and short positions of the Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company
As at 31 December 2012, so far as was known to the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or
taken to have, an interest or short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, were as follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Shares

R
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Percentage of
the Company’s
issued Shares

as at
31 December
2012
eV
R-B——%
Number of +=-A=+-—H
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares ZEBTRG
RE&ME St B3 E B
Glamour House Limited Interest of a controlled 546,964,782 39.48%
corporation (Note 1)
ErnEE R (M)
Asian Dynamics International Limited ~ Beneficial owner (Note 2) 546,346,132 39.47%
EanmEAA(ME2)
Perfect Image Group Limited Beneficial Owner 91,430,911 6.60%
EnEEA
Logic Ease Group Limited Beneficial Owner 86,500,000 6.24%
BEREAA
Blue Balloon Limited Beneficial Owner 86,500,000 6.24%
EnEEA
Sweetly Limited Beneficial Owner 86,500,000 6.24%
BEREAA
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Note 1: The controlled corporation is Asian Dynamics
International Limited, which is beneficially owned
as to 67.18% by Glamour House Limited.

Note 2: The controlled corporation is Glamour House
Limited, which is beneficially owned as to 90%
by Mr. Chu Yat Hong, and which is the
beneficial owner as to 67.18% of Asian
Dynamics International Limited.

(i) Long Positions in the Underlying Shares
Nil

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
or debentures in the Company or any other body corporate
granted to any Directors or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their respective spouse or minor children to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates had an interest in a
business which competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group nor any conflicts of
interest which has or may have with the Group.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDER

As far as the Directors are aware of, other than Asian
Dynamics International Limited, Glamour House Limited, Mr.
Chu Yat Hong, Mr. Xie Xuan, Perfect Image Group Limited,
Logic Ease Group Limited, Blue Balloon Limited and Sweetly
Limited as disclosed above, there was no other person as at
31 December 2012 who was directly or indirectly interested in
5% or more of the shares then in issue of the Company and
who was able, as a practicable matter, to direct or influence
the management of the Company.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited, who acted as auditor for last
year resigned as auditor of the Company on 3 December
2012. Cheng & Cheng Limited was appointed on 3 December
2012 to fill the casual vacancy.

The consolidated financial statements for the year were
audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
Chu Yat Hong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a
high standard of corporate governance. The Board recognizes
that such commitment is essential in upholding the
accountability and transparency and to achieve a balance of
interests between the shareholders, customers, creditors,
employees as well as other stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

To ensure compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) and the
Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1 April 2012) (the
“Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules,
the Board will continue to monitor and revise the Company
code to bring our corporate governance practices in line with
the changes in the environment and requirements of the Code.
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all the provisions of the Code, for the year ended 31
December 2012, except:

() under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election. None of the existing Non-executive Directors of
the Company are appointed for a specific term. This
constitutes a deviation from the code provision. However, all
the Non-executive Directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation at annual general meetings pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with all
the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on behalf
of the shareholders. The Board is of the view that it is the
Directors’ responsibility to create value for the shareholders as
a whole and safeguard the best interests of the Company and
the shareholders by discharging its duties in a dedicated,
diligent and prudent manner on the principle of good faith.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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The Board comprises a total of eight Directors, with four
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Yat Hong (Chairman), Mr.
Xie Xuan (Chief Executive), Mr. Qiu Yue and Mr. Xiao Jing; one
non-executive Director namely Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond
(Vice-Chairman), and three independent nonexecutive
Directors namely Mr. Wu Jixue, Dr. Feng Ke and Mr. Zhang
Daorong. They are professionals in different areas and provide
independent opinions based on their expertise.

BOARD PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF
MEETINGS

Proposed regular Board meeting dates for a year are informed
to each Director at the beginning of the year. Formal notice of
at least 14 days will be given in respect of a regular meeting.
For special board meeting, reasonable notice will be given.
The Board of Directors meets regularly at least 4 times a year.
The Directors participated either in person or through other
means of communication. All notices of board meetings were
given to all Directors, who were given an opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for discussion. All Directors are kept
informed on a timely basis of major changes that may affect
the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules and
regulations. Directors can also seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if
necessary. Minutes of each board meeting will be kept and
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by
any Director.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of the legal action against the Directors.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has established formal, considered and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new directors.
The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles
of Association. According to the Company’s Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest to but not greater than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
notwithstanding anything herein, the chairman of the Board
shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to retirement
by rotation or be taken into account in determining the number
of Directors to retire in each year. Accordingly, as at the date
of this report, Mr. Chu Yat Hong, being the chairman of the
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Company, is not subject to retirement by rotation. Other
relevant Articles state that all Directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to re-election by
shareholders at their first annual general meeting after
appointment, a retired Director shall be eligible for re-election.
All Directors should retire by rotation at least once every three
years.

The attendance record of each member of the Board during
the year under review is set out below:

tHRERH > KRB EFEAR—MELEHEAIR
RImESER - EMAEARETA - FiA REHE
MR ERMERECEFTEERZERZER
BRBFAG LREXBRRESR  REEFES
BR2HEE BUEFAZVBE=FHES
B—IR -

REBFANEEFSKE LR L FECHN
T~

Annual
Board of Audit Nomination Remuneration general
Directors Ex Directors Committee =~ Committee Committee meeting
EZE EBHZEE ReZEg HWEEE RFEFXE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Chu Yat Hong (Chairman) K—MEE(FE) 33 NANTER NATER NATER  NANTEE
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chief Executive) HERE(7THBH) 18/13  NATER  NATER 11 11
Mr. Qiu Yue s 113 NAAER NATER N/A/TNER 11
Mr. Xiao Jing SNt 33 NANTER NANTER NA/TER  NATER
Non-Exceutive Directors EBTES
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond ESREE(FEE)
(Vice-Chairman) 18/13  N/A/TER 11 N/A/TNE R 11
Independent Non-Executive BAERTES
Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue TEELE 10113 44 N/ANTER 11 11
Mr. Zhang Daorong REXREAE 11/13 4/4 11 N/A/ T E B 11
Mr. Feng Ke BRI 713 2/4 11 11 11
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT EEZIFEHENR

OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Every newly appointed director
will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Besides, Directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics will be issued to Directors
where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the 1RBIEARNGIFE 208k MEEENAFEE
current Directors received the following training with an A TEEA T AREEZAE B MRS
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a ~ ZIE3)l - AT HRIFEHERE 2 KB E
listing company in compliance with the Revised CG Code on  SA5F 8l »

continuous professional development during the Year.

Corporate Governance Accounting Financial/
Updates on Laws Rules & Management or
Regulations Other Professional Skills
LEEL/BRES - R it EE
REBlZ&MmER HitZEHE
Attended Attended
Read Seminars Read Seminars
Materials or Briefing Materials  or Briefings
HEHtE/ HEHHE
Directors EE MEEE HRE MEEE ERE
Executive Directors BiTEE
Mr. Chu Yat Hong (Chairman) R—EE(ERE) Y/’ NANTER Y/ NANTER
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chief Executive) S A (7T B8 ) Y/2  NANTER Y/&  NANTER
Mr. Qiu Yue et Y/ = N/A/ 1N Y/ 2 N/A/ B
Mr. Xiao Jing HIBLE Y/&  NATEA Y/®  NANTER
Non-Exceutive Directors FHBTERE
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond ESRTEEFRE)
(Vice-Chairman) Y/ = Y/ % Y/ & =
Independent Non-Executive BIEHTES
Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue TRBEs Y/ & N/A/ N F Y/ & N/A/ i FR
Mr. Zhang Daorong REHELE YR NATER YR  NANTER
Mr. Feng Ke BRHEAE Y/ NANTEE Y/ & Y/ &
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE EFRITBERE

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Chu Yat Hong and the Chief ~ EZ= @ X E N1THER D B AR —f ok 4 &
Executive is Mr. Xie Xuan, and their roles with the company BE%4 @ BRENATIHRESE - TFEESE
are separate. The Chairman provides leadership and is ZET{E  WEBEHEFLSEEESHUEE-
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the {THAHABEARAREBEEURBEQEE
Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s 12 R&4E T {E o

business development and daily management and operations

generally.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election. None of the existing Non-executive Directors of
the Company are appointed for a specific term. This
constitutes a deviation from the code provision. However, all
the Non-executive Directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation at annual general meetings pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent based on the annual
confirmations received.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee has been established. The
current chairman of the committee is Mr. Wu Jixue, an
independent non-executive Director, and the other members
are Dr. Feng Ke, and Mr. Xie Xuan.

Under the code provision B.1.1, a listed issuer should
establish a remuneration committee with specific written terms
of reference which deal clearly with its authority and duties.
The Company, has established a remuneration committee as
required under the code provision B.1.1. The role and function
of the remuneration committee includes the determination of
the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment, and to make
recommendations to the board regarding the remuneration of
non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

During the period under review, one meeting of the
remuneration committee was held.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The company has established a nomination committee it
comprised of namely Dr. Feng Ke, Mr. Zhang Daorong and
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond. The chairman of the committee is
Dr. Feng Ke, an Independent non-executive director. The
committee considers the past performance, qualification,
general market conditions and the Company’s articles of
association in selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship during the year.

The nomination committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors.

On 22 November 2012, the Committee nominated and the
Company appointed Mr. Chu Yat Hong, as Chairman of the
Board, Mr. Xie Xuan as Chief Executive and Executive Director
and Mr. Xiao Jing as Executive Director. During the year under
review one meeting of the nomination committee was held.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has established an audit committee comprising
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Daorong(Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Wu Jixue and Dr.
Feng Ke, and has adopted terms of reference governing the
authorities and duties of the audit committee. The primary
duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal controls of the Group.
The audit committee has reviewed the draft of this Annual
report and the audited financial statements and has provided
advice and comments thereon. During the year under review,
the audit committee had four meetings and has met with the
auditor twice without the presence of the executive directors.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external
auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could lead
to any potential material adverse effect on the Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, the total fee paid/

payable in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the Company’s external auditor is set out below:

BE-T-——F+-A=tHULFER &
NRLZ INBZ BB 2 S R E X AR5 T
B BRAAREINT

2012 2011
k- b —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHETT FET
Type of Services PR 75 1E 28
Audit Service B2 R 500,000 500,000

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

Statements of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements and external auditor’s reporting
responsibilities as set out in the Auditor’s Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

On an annual basis the Directors have reviewed and are
satisfied with their ability to comply with the policies installed
as part of the Group’s internal control system, including, in
particular, financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. Furthermore, the Directors are
satisfied with the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting functions, and their training programs and budget.

AUDITOR
During the year under review, Cheng and Cheng Limited have
been appointed as the external auditor of the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The company secretary, Mr. Lam Ting Lok, maintains a high
standard of corporate governance and has complied with Rule
5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review all Constitutional documents
have been filed and updated on the GEM & Company’s
websites.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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According to the GEM Listing Rules, all resolutions put forward
at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company after each shareholder meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, pursuant to the
Articles of Association of the Company, general meetings shall
be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
shareholders of the Company deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company
ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company.

General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one shareholder of the Company which is a
recognized clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist
held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of
deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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RERWE

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the company

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, if a
shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a director of the Company at a general meeting,
he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s head office.

The Notice (i) must include the personal information of the
Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing
Rules; and (i) must be signed by the shareholder concerned
and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to
be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal
information.

The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on the
day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting and
end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

In order to ensure the Company’s shareholders have sufficient
time to receive and consider the proposal of election of the
Candidate as a director of the Company without adjourning
the general meeting, shareholders are urged to submit and
lodge the Notice as early as practicable preferably at least 15
business days prior to the date of the general meeting
appointed for such election.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office. For the avoidance of
doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the Company’s head office and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to
give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
shareholders and investors in compliance with GEM Listing
Rules and uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the Company.

These include (i) the publication of quarterly and annual
reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary general
meeting providing a forum for shareholders of the Company to
raise comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) the
Company replying to the enquires from shareholders timely; (iv)
updated and key information of the Company available on
website of the Company; (v) the Company’s website offering
communication channel between the Company and its
shareholders and investors; and (vi) the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong serves the shareholders regarding all
share registration matters. Also, the chairman of the board
would attend the annual general meeting and he would also
arrange for the chairmen of the other committees to attend. In
case of the absence, of the chairman of such committees, he
would invite another member of the committee to attend.
These persons would be available to answer questions at the
annual general meeting. The chairman of the independent
board committee would also be available to answer questions
at any general meeting to approve a connected transaction or
any other transaction that is subject to requires independent
shareholders’ approval. The external auditor would also be
arranged to attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Company will keep on reviewing its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavour to take
the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the required
practices and standards including the provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock
Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B AZHEN RS

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ASIAN CAPITAL RESOURCES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 36
to 1283, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor’s considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group’s loss
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,

138 Gloucester Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong,

Tong Yat Hung

Practising Certificate Number P01055

26 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= ANPAN —
e EmEW R
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F—_F+-A=1T—HIULFE

CONTINUING OPERATIONS FEEEER
Note 2012 2011
Ff & %% —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHIT
Turnover ] 5(a) 6,574 6,964
Cost of services RS A AN — (1,377)
Gross profit EF 6,574 5,587
Other revenue and net income HAb e R AFEE 5(b) 2,063 3,249
Administrative and operating expenses 17H & %:ER % (25,372) (54,621)
Loss from operations reEE (16,735) (45,785)
Finance costs A B AN 7 (5,662) (6,735)
Loss before taxation BrEiATE 1B 8 (22,397) (62,520)
Income tax expense FTigBim = 10 3,734 10,991
Loss for the year from continuing REEREEEREER
operations 5t (18,663) (41,529)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS RIS
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries & HE A 7 2 & F 11 - 24,110
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEEBE (18,663) (17,419)
Other comprehensive income: Hih2ERE
Exchange difference arising on BREBINEBESY
translation of foreign operations P& H Z%8 (253) 2,274
Other comprehensive (loss)/income REEEMEE (FiE), s
for the year, net of tax (BRFEIE) (253) 2,274
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AEEEHEEBREHE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (18,916) (15,145)
(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO: T3 A+ FE(L (B518) #sH :
— owners of the Company — AARHEABA 12 (13,687) 846
— non-controlling interest — FEIERRAE S (4,976) (18,265)
(18,663) (17,419)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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T

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—T——F+-_HA=+—HIFZ

Note 2012 2011
B ex —ET-C-F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHIT
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TIHALEEZEEBE
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 4BEE -
— owners of the Company — KAREEA A (13,826) 3,059
— non-controlling interests — JEPERRE S (5,090) (18,204)
(18,916) (15,145)
HK Cents HK Cents
A A1
(Loss)/earnings per share: Tk (E58E) &BF - 14
From continuing and discontinued REBECEEBRNM
operation RIS E TS
— Basic — ER (1.19) 0.08
— Diluted — (1.19) 0.47
From continuing operation REFELEER
— Basic — HEKR (1.19) (2.17)
— Diluted — B8 (1.19) (1.27)
From discontinued operations RER R EERE
— Basic — BERK - 2.25
— Diluted — B - 1.74

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ira SR &
As at 31 December 2012
R-E——F+-HA=+—H

Note 2012 2011
B EE S T
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENERE 15 360 1,130
Development costs B 3% 5 AN 16 - -
Intangible assets EVEE 17 24,860 40,653
25,220 41,783
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and other receivables B R EMEWEER 19 15,833 8,121
Cash and cash equivalents BeKREFEY 20 46 655
15,879 8,776
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBERE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMBEIRK 21 40,049 36,172
Convertible notes EIES 22 - 61,715
Tax payable FERT I IE 1,249 1,238
41,298 99,125
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEEFE (25,419) (90,349)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT  48i& & i i 8 & fi5
LIABILITIES (199) (48,566)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBER
Amount due to a director FEN—ZEEFHE 27 (5,813) (5,276)
Amount due to immediate holding BT E R A FIZKIE
company 27 (25,859) (21,411)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHBAE 23 (6,215) (11,973)
(37,887) (38,660)
NET LIABILITIES BESE (38,086) (87,226)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAREE
Share capital &R 24 138,552 108,269
Reserves e 25 (183,496) (207,443)
Deficit attributable to owners RAEHER ANEIGRTE
of the Company (44,944) (99,174)
Non-controlling interests IEPE R = 6,858 11,948
NET DEFICIT RFFEE (38,086) (87,226)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Approved an authorised for issue by the board of directors on

26 March 2013.

Xie Xuan
Director

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Qiu Yue
Director
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B AR SR

As at 31 December 2012
RZ-F—ZF+_A=+—H

Note 2012 2011
k=3 —g-C-F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries RB AR 2= 18 30,310 34,224
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5N E MW ARFK 19 = 46
CURRENT LIABILITIES ENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H M IR 21 2,636 4,758
Amounts due to subsidiaries [l IENGI B 18 139 4,103
Convertible notes A RRS EiE 22 - 61,715
2,775 70,576
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEERE (2,775) (70,530)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #@EEREZHARE
LIABILITIES 27,535 (36,306)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERFER
Amount due to a director N —REEHE 27 (46) (46)
Amount due to immediate A RNER 32 YNCIE L]
holding company 27 (25,878) (21,897)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEA & 23 = (1,809)
(25,924) (23,752)
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) SE (BRB)i%HE 1,611 (60,058)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR GHE
Share capital A% A 24 138,552 108,269
Reserves EE 25 (136,941) (168,327)
TOTAL EQUITY/(NET DEFICIT) MR (R3)iRE 1,611 (60,058)

The accompanying notes from an integral part of these &M 2 MisE B ARG A B ERER 2 — 30D -

consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R-ZE—=F=A-+ \AEESeEN

on 26 March 2013.

Xie Xuan
Director

T -

Qiu Yue ELL BB
Director EE EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= A *F) < 42k
N

R

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE—FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
FATHEAEL
Issued Convertible Non-
share Share Capital  Translation notes Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
THRRER
E¥ThRE  ROEE AFEGE  ERRE ks RHER [ 30 gt
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL AL TEL AL AL TAL AL AL
Asat 1 January 2011 R-E—4-F-f 98842 124,060 26,020 (3456) 11979 (378075)  (120630) 80213 (90417)
Profit/oss) for the year REREH/ (B8 - - - - - 846 846 (18265 (17.419)
Exchange difference of arising B4\ £ pE S
on translation foreign LERER
operations - - - 2,274 - - 2,214 - 2,274
Total comprehensive loss rEEREFRAER
for the year - - - 2,274 - 846 3120 (18,265) (15,145)
Issue of shares by exercise RITERRENET
of share options R 100 175 - - - - 275 - 275
Costs on issue of shares BRH 2K - (34) - - - - (34) - (34)
Conversion of convertible notes A #FE 9,327 11,589 - - (3,379) - 17,537 - 17,537
Deferred tax liabities on THRER 2RI
convertiole notes WEERE - - - - 558 - 558 - 558
9,427 11,730 - - (2,821) - 18,336 - 18,336
As at 31 December 2011 R-F—-F
+ZB=+-8B 108,269 135,790 26,020 (1,182 9,158 (377,229) (99,174) 11,948 (87,226)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

N

—=H= N\ /7

B BB

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—T——F+-_HA=+—HIFZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRAAES
Issued Convertible Non-
share Share Capital  Translation notes Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
THRRER
E¥ThEd ROEE GREE  EREG e RitbR NGt iR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL AL AL TEL AL AL TEL AL
Asat 1 January 2012 R-E-—%-f-H 108,269 135,790 26,020 (1,182) 9,158 (377,229 (99,174) 11,048 (87,226)
Loss for the year TEEBE - - - - - (13,687) (13,687) (4,976) (18,669)
Exchange difference arising BERNEBAEE
on translation of foreign LELER
operations - - - (139) - - (139) (114) (259)
Total comprehensive loss TEERAFRAER
for the year - - - (139) - (13,687) (13,826) (5,090) (18916)
Gonversion of convertible notes X e[ R Z % 30,283 46,931 - - (10,967) - 66,247 - 66,247
Deferred tax liabities on TRREE R
convertible notes REEE - - - - 1,809 - 1,809 - 1,809
As at 31 December 2012 3
+ZR=+-H 138,552 182,721 26,020 (1,321) - (390,916) (44,944) 6,858 (38,086)

TSMEE (R BRAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=AN AN =g —1

:Z\\/T\ = Eﬁi//lbii'%

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F—_F+-A=1T—HIULFE

Note 2012 2011
Bt aE —B—=fF =%
HK’000 HK’000
FHET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM CELBRELZHESRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation from REFBLCEER 2
continuing operations BRTLATE R (22,397) (52,520)
Profit before taxation from REKRIHEEEBE 2
discontinued operation B Fx AT = 24,110
(22,397) (28,410)
Adjustments for: AT EIEAE
Interest income FEWA (2 )
Interest expenses FEZH 5,662 6,735
Depreciation of property, Y - BEREE
plant and equipment ZITE 743 613
Amortisation of intangible assets B B 10,841 18,836
Provision for guarantee income BRI AR 4,000 -
Property, plant and W - WE R
equipment written off B 32 -
Net gain on deregistration of R ME AR 2
subsidiaries i ) F 58 = (23,929
Impairment of other receivables Hth f AR FORE = 10
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 4,952 29,981
Other payables written back H B BR SR ) (2,060) (3,205)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEMEEZ
plant and equipment fE518 - 1
Operation profit before EEEBSEYAI 28
changes in working capital gl 1,771 629
Increase in trade and 2 5 R EH Ab YR FIE hn
other receivables (7,712) (8,403)
Increase in trade and other payables £ 5 & E b f& 1~ BR ZIE N 1,692 2,546
Cash used in operations MBS S (4,249) (5,228)
Tax paid BAHIE (215) -
Net cash used in operating activities 4% & % 7%~ IR £ %58 (4,464) (5,228)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meEReERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—T——F+-_HA=+—HIFZ

Note 2012 2011
ihp=2 —E—=%F T
HK’000 HK’000
TET T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING & EHZIRSKE
ACTIVITIES
Interest income FEWA 2 3
Purchase of property, BEWE W&
plant and equipment B (3) (3)
Net cash used in investing activities R & EENFTA 2B &R E (1) -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING FiEEHZHEHE
ACTIVITIES
Advance from/(payment) to EESN(EHESHE)
a director 537 (757)
Advance from immediate BEEERARZRR
holding company 4,448 2,026
Proceeds from issue of shares RTTE AR m BTG,
by exercise of share options Frig50a - 275
Issuing expenses on conversion AN AR 2 BRI TR S
of convertible notes - (34)
Interest paid FEXZH (1,130) (1,024)
Net cash generated from financing gt & )EEEL IR & F5E
activities 3,855 486
NET DECREASE IN CASHAND HR&RRESZEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS W niFER (610) (4,742)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RE#ZHL2BRRSZEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 655 6,504
Effects of foreign exchange rate HNEE [ R B 2 2
changes 1 (1,107)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REXRZIRES RIS ZHEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 20 46 655

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMI Z i BRA NG A EHRER 2 —387 -
consolidated financial statements.
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1.

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information
section of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to nearest thousand
unless otherwise stated.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are investment
holdings, provision of online content information and
related technical services, business consultation services
and internet protocol television services.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
ultimate holding company is Glamour House Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The
immediate holding company is Asian Dynamics
International Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Standards, Amendments and
Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopter.
HKFRS 7 Amendments  Transfers of Financial Assets
HKAS12 Amendments  Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets.

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has no
material effect on the financial statements of the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements:

HKFRSs Amendments

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFR 9 and HKFRS 7
Amendments

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

and HKFRS 12
Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments
HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle?

Government Loans?

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?
Financial Instruments*

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures*

Consolidated Financial Statements?
Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interest
in Other Entities?

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangement and Disclosures
of Interest in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance?

Investment Entities®

Fair Value Measurement?

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income'
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2013

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2015

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in
November 2009 and October 2010. It replaces the parts
of HKAS 39 that relate to the classification and
measurement of financial instruments. HKFRS 9 requires
financial assets to be classified into two measurement
categories: those measured at fair value and those
measured at amortised cost. The determination is made
at initial recognition.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument.
For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the
HKAS 39 requirements. The main change is that, in
cases where the fair value option taken for financial
liabilities, the part of fair value change due to an entity’s
own credit risk is recognised in other comprehensive
income rather than profit or loss, unless this creates an
accounting mismatch. The Group is yet to assess
HKFRS 9’s full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 9
upon its effective date, which is for the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” builds
on existing principles by identifying the concept of control
as the determining factor in whether an entity should be
included within the consolidated financial statements of
the parent company. The standard provides additional
guidance to assist in the determination of control where
this is difficult to assess. The Group is yet to assess
HKFRS 10’s full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 10
no later than the accounting period beginning on or after
1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” aims to improve
consistency and reduce complexity by providing a
precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair
value measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across HKFRSs. The requirements do not extend the
use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on
how it should be applied where its use is already required
or permitted by other standards within HKFRSs. The
Group is yet to assess HKFRS 13’s full impact and
intends to adopt HKFRS 13 no later than the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of other new and revised Standards,
Amendments and Interpretation, certain of which may be
relevant to the Group’s operations and may give rise to
changes in accounting policies, changes in disclosures
and remeasurement of certain items in the financial
statements. The Group is not yet to assess their impact
on its results of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
HKICPA and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

Going concern

The Group had incurred a loss for the year of
approximately HK$18,663,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2012 and net current liabilities
of approximately HK$25,419,000 as at 31
December 2012. The directors of the Company
endeavor to improve the Group’s liquidity position
and have taken measures to reduce overheads and
costs to strengthen its cash flow position.
Furthermore, the directors of the Company are
currently exploring various options, which include
the issue of new shares, in order to provide
additional equity funding to the Group. In addition,
the immediate holding company has agreed to
provide continuing financial support for the Group
to meet its liabilities as they fall due and the
directors consider the new business operation
acquired previously would generate sufficient
working capital to support the Group’s operations.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Going concern (Cont’d)

Provided that the above measures can successfully
improve the liquidity position of the Group, the
directors of the Company are satisfied that the
Group will be able to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on the going
concern basis. Should the Group be unable to
operate as a going concern, adjustments, would
have to be made to write down the value of assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities. The effect of these adjustments has
not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

Basic of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities (including special purpose entities)
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition and up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All'intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basic of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii)
derecognises the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income
attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the
Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled
entity.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basic of consolidation (Cont’d)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;
and

° liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basic of consolidation (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the ‘measurement
period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basic of consolidation (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group
obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised at the date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to write off their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

20%-33% or over
the remaining lease
terms, whichever is
shorter

20%-50%

20%-33%

Leasehold
improvement

Furniture and fixtures

Computer and
equipment

Motor vehicles . 33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit
or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(f)

0]

(i)

Research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if the
product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials,
direct labour, and an appropriate proportion
of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
Other development expenditure is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of exclusive
right of usage of Broadcast of Audio-Video
Program On Web Permit is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost
of it over its estimated useful lives of eight
years.

Period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from use. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(9)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any).

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the
recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Cont’d)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets
The financial assets of the Group are
classified into loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(h) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

0]

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, and cash and
bank balances) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment, except where the receivables
are interest-free loans without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the investment have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(h)

0]

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For certain categories of financial asset, such
as trade receivables, are assessed for
impairment on an individual basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments that pass the
credit period, as well as observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(h) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by the Group are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables, and amounts due to a director and
immediate holding company) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, unless the
effect of discounting would not be material, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(h)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the
prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost
basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the amount of the
liability component from the fair value of the
compound instrument as a whole. This is
recognised and included in equity, net of
income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion
option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in
which case, the balance recognised in equity
will be transferred to share premium. Where
the conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the convertible notes, the
balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion
option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(h) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

(iii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Convertible notes (Cont’d)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible notes are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability component and are
amortised over the lives of the convertible
notes using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instrument.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred assets, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(iii) Derecognition (Cont’d)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its
entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part if continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive
income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that
is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i

)]

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the services
provided in the course of the ordinary activities, net
of discounts and related sales taxes. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as
follow:

(i) Income from the provision of project
consultancy services, internet solution
services and content services is recognised in
accordance with the terms of the underlying
contracts and when the underlying services
are rendered;

(i)  Income from the provision of internet protocol
television services is recognised in
accordance with the terms of the underlying
subscription agreement and when the
underlying services are rendered;

@iy Income from advertising services is
recognised in accordance with the terms of
the underlying contract and when the
underlying services are rendered; and
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For the year ended 31
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(i) Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(iv)

Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time-apportioned basis that
takes into account the effective yield on the
assets.

(k) Employee benefits

0]

(ii)

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, bonuses, paid leaves and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Retirement benefits schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the People Republic of China (“PRC”) are
members of central pension schemes
operated by the local governments in the
PRC and these subsidiaries make mandatory
contributions to these central pension
schemes to fund the employees’ retirement
benefits. The retirement contributions paid by
the PRC subsidiaries are based on certain
percentages of the employees’ salaries cost
in accordance with the relevant regulations in
the PRC, and are charged to profit or loss as
incurred. The Group has no further obligation
for post-retirement benefits upon payment of
the retirement contributions to the central
pension schemes operated by the local
governments in the PRC.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(iij) Share-based payments

The fair value of the share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
share-based payment reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is included
in profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payment reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based payment
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).

(iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or to
provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

()

(m)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(m)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising associated with
investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Current tax and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current tax and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. When current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the business combination.

3.

(m)

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

BBk ()
iR (4)
BERER RN BARZRE
FELERPTEEERR X

I8 ] 42 1) ey 2 RE o FE [ DA B T
ZFERATE R AR A A gE B 2 15
SUBRAN o BIZERE RiEm AR
AN s EREFTE £ 2 B EFR IR
BEENTEE CHERT T
VA AR 258 v b B TRRT A
B8 2R A] LA Bl R RERR o

EALBRAR 2 BEEN S HE
RED - LR BRI R
BRI R E 2 BB EWEE
SHEEL

BERIBEENABBERENRRS
HARBEEMIABLEEER
%@Hﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁi
ﬁ?“ﬁ%ﬁi%Zﬁ#%
EHTRBEHEEE S &%&
ﬁ$%@ﬂﬁ%%$%ﬁ%%@j
BEEERBEERmE HAFE
Eﬁ%*% EER AR 1855 N
R EMECHIBESRREMEE
Wa BN ERNERZIEE -
RIERER I8 J7 & 5 L A 2 T U 2 3k
EENERANER - BB R
ERERIBREER  BIERETE
BN E A2 E AR R E R
HERNIBEEBE(EZBRAT
BVERFI B SRR R IR T 2 Rl A8 HoAtb
2ENREERIEER SR
c MERE 2P EETIRE
EERNPHIBESRIRLERE - AR
HEAEBEH SRR

TSMEE (R BRAF

67



68

Annual Report 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR BT R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(n)

(o)

(P)

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)
Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.

Contingent liabilities

Present obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliably. Possible
obligations that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as a contingent liability unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the entity’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss
on repayment of the monetary item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(p)

(@)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during the year, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
translation reserve as a separate component of
equity. Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences is re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and is not recognised in profit
or loss.

Related parties
(@ A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of

the Group;

or
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE_F—_F+-A=1T—HIULFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. BEXEHBIE (&

(@) Related parties (Cont’d) () FBAEANX(E)
(o)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the b) EUTEMAEBERT XEE
following conditions applies: o OAREEGBE
()  the entity and the Group are the () EREASEEAERN %
members of the same group; B2 ARKE
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint iy ERAS—ERB(HS
venture of other entity (or an associate —EREIONG - B
or joint venture of a member of a group NBIHERMEAR)
of which the other entity is a member); RN R /N
al
(i) the entity and the Group are joint iy HRERERS —EEMNE
ventures of the same third party; LAREAEE R A (8
H—EBRKBEARIN
REERKE QA AYEE
BRRIEE AR
(v) one entity is a joint venture of a third vy EBAF-FHZEZERQ
entity and the other entity is an AES—EBRFE=F
associate of the third entity; i /NI
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit v) ERAASENHEAL
plan for the benefit of employees of EEEEE ETHRY
either the Group or an entity related to BEES =2
the Group;
(v the entity is controlled or jointly V) ERBHE@FATATL
controlled by a person identified in (a); ol sl [E) F A
(vi) a person is identified in (a)(i) has Vi) @OFTREATEHELR
significant influence over the entity or is BEEAXE NN BZE
a member of key management (R ER AT
personnel of the entity (or of the parent JTEEEEAS -
of the entity).
Close members of the family of a person are those TR RBKEIRETES A HZE AT
family members who may be expected to influence, TSR BB E TR

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings BB EKRENKE -
with the entity.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(r)

(s)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if early. It
also occurs when the operation is abandoned.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-F——F+-A=+—AILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(s) Discontinued operations (Cont’d)
When an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management has made
the following judgments that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

(i) Valuation of intangible assets and useful-life
The Group has made estimations and assumptions
in relation to the potential future cash flows of
identifiable intangible assets acquired as part of
business combinations. This assessment involves
estimations and assumptions relating to potential
future revenues, appropriate discount rates and the
useful life of such assets. These estimations and
assumptions impact the profit or loss over the
useful life of the intangible asset.

(i) Impairment test of intangible assets

The Group determines whether intangible assets
are impaired requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units. The value in use
calculation requires management to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)
(iii) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, after taking into account of their estimated
residual value. The determination of the useful lives
and residual values involve management’s
estimation. The Group assesses annually the
residual value and the useful life of the property,
plant and equipment and if the expectation differs
from the original estimate, such a difference may
impact the depreciation in the year when the
estimate is changed and the future period.

5. REVENUE

(@)

An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is
as follows:

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

st FHBEARZ T B RE (&)

(i) Y% - MERREZINE

ME - BB MERECEBEGFE
HBEBEREABESENEMGFTAE
REBRITE - EEFERFHRE
FIrEESNEEE 2G5t - A%
EEFHEYE - BEREREZF
HREBERFERAFTH - MMATED
ZBHERR L Z A B TR - 8
ZERREETEREH I FE
RAREEZ T EBRTE -

2012 2011
k- St —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T
Internet protocol television Gt EER

service income AR AU 1,030 1,204
Advertising service income EERISUA - 5,515
Consultancy service income HE RIS A 5,544 245
6,574 6,964
An analysis of the Group’s other revenue and net (b) AEBEFAREMUEERKAFED

income for the year is as follows: HranT -
2012 2011
—g--f —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Other income EHbllgas 1 41
Other payables written back oAb fE A~ BR S0 (o] 2,060 3,205
Interest income F B A 2 3
2,063 3,249

TSMEE (R BRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segment information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, directors of the Company, is the type of
services rendered by the Group’s operating division for
the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment. The Group’s operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

The Group is currently organised into two major business
divisions:

()  content solution and business consultation
services; and

(i) internet protocol television services.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales
in the year (2011: Nil).

Segment result represents the profit/loss incurred by
each segment without allocation of corporate income
and expense, central administration cost, directors’
salaries, interest income, gain/loss on disposal of
investment in subsidiaries, gain/loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment, impairment of trade and
other receivables, finance costs, impairment of trade and
other payables written back and income tax expense.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—T——F+-_HA=+—HIFZ

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. NEEEE)
(a) Segment revenues and results (@) PEBUERELS
2012
¥
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
REREERE RIETEEH
Content
solution and
business
consultation Internet

services protocol
MEME  television
BAFE  services Logistics
REH 1] Total  senices Group
BARE  EHRE &gt BRRE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FiET FiERT TR T

Segments revenue Al 5,544 1,030 6,574 - 6,574
Segments results PH%E (939) (15,089) (16,028) - (16,028)
Interest income FEHA 2
Unallocated corporate income FAOEDARA 1
Unallocated corporate expenses FARRFRL (2,770)
Other payables written back EEREREE 2,060
Finance costs BERK (5,662)
Income tax expense FIEHRY 3,734
Loss for the year TEEEE (18,663)

THEE(ER) ERAT 75
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

'_\_|
N

B2 —F

6.

—=Ff A= HIUFE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Segment revenues and results (Cont’d)

(@)

6. HEREH(H)
(a) SYEBUTES R 448 (4

2011
—2——F
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
FELEER w37
Content
solution and
business
consultation Internet
services protocol
RAtE television
BANE senvices Logistics
REB GEE Total senvices Group
EEL o SRS @5t MR @it
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAL T AL TAL
Segments revenue paRi G 245 6,719 6,964 - 6,964
Segments results PEEE (613) (45,010) (45,523) 24,110 (21,413
Interest income HEKMA 3
Unallocated corporate income AARAFARA 41
Unallocated corporate expenses v NIl EY (3319)
Other payables written back At ERESER 3,206
Loss on deregistration of subsiclaries RN (181)
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE BREREE
plant and equipment BB ()
Impairment of other receivables ERRER AE (10
Finance costs BENAK (6,735)
Income tax expense FrEmES 10,991
Loss for the year AERER (17419

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—T——F+-_HA=+—HIFZ

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. NEEEE)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) HPEERERE
2012
%
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
RREEEH RIETEEH
Content
solution and
business
consultation Internet

services protocol
MERE  television
BAFE  services Logistics
RER b1 Total  services Group
BARE  ERE & BRRE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i T Fix FiET FiERn

Segments assets PHEE 5,577 35,399 40,976 - 40,976
Unallocated assets AOEEE 123
Consolidated assets GREE 41,099
Segment liabilties HHEE (6,298) (32,900) (39,193) - (39,193)
Unallocated liabiltes FARAE (39,992)
Consolidated liabilties raBE (79,185)

THEE(ER) ERAT 77
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. NEEEE)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d) (b) PBEEREEE)
201
-
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
FELEER w37
Content
solution and
husiness
consultation Internet
services protocol
RAEE  television
BARR sevices Logistics
&3 BBE Total services Group

wakE  ERRB & R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THT TR TR

Segments assets PHEE 3,383 46,971 50,354 - 50,354
Unallocated assets AOEEE 206
Consolidated assets FadE 50,559
Segment liabilties PHEE (10,988) (37,655) (48,643) - (48,643)
Unallocated liabilties APEAE (89,142)
Consolidated liabilties raBE (137,785)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(c) Other segment information

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

6. HEREH(H)
(© RisEpEs

2012
—E--F
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
FHEEEER RS
Content
solution
and business
consultation Internet
services protocol
P& e television
BRHR services Logistics
REB HEHA services
A BARTS EiRIRT Wik
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FTERT TFERT TFHET
Capital expenditure BEARFET 3 - -
Depreciate of property, plant ME - BB RRE
and equipment ZIE 35 705 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B E > 10,841 -
Impairment of intangible assets BREAEZRE = 4,952 -

TSMEE (R BRAF
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iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F—_F+-A=1T—HIULFE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
(c) Other segment information (Cont’d)

TEREH ()
(c) HEfbsEmEs(a)

2011
—T——%
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BELEES BRI EET
Content
solution
and business
consultation Internet
services protocol
NAHFE television
AR services Logistics
eSS B4 services
AR B W AR 7%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FHET FHET
Capital expenditure BARIY - 591 -
Depreciate of property, plant M BB NERE
and equipment ZIE 10 600 -
Amortisation of intangible assets I EE#Y - 18,836 -
Impairment of intangible assets BREEZRE - 29,981 -

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(d) Geographical information
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the
PRC.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical location are detailed below:

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

SEER (2)

(d)

Hh 3% &
AEEZEXGEBMUNFTE -

AEE R B B EIS 2 N HEP
AR T -

2012 2011
—ET——%F —F——
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHEIT
Continuing operations SECEET
PRC =] 6,574 6,964
Discontinued operations RS TS
PRC h _ _
(e) Information about major customers () BRAEXEEFRZER
Included in revenues from external customers of INERE P U2 6,574,000 L (=&
HK$6,574,000 (2011: HK$6,964,000) are revenues — — 16,964,000/ T ) B ¥E
of HK$3,691,000 which arose from services 3,691,000/ 7T 2 Wi - B B =
rendered to the Group’s largest customer under REANBHEREBEARBE S E
the content solution and business consultation TRXEEZEAEFPRE RS
services segment (2011: HK$5,515,000 arose from (ZZE——F  REEBBPERR
the internet protocol television services segment). %3 865,515,0007T) °
FINANCE COSTS RIE R A
2012 2011
T —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHIT
Other interest HibF B 1,130 1,024
Imputed interest expense of AR ER 2 HEFERAY
convertible notes 4,532 5,711
5,662 6,735

TSMEE (R BRAF
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HE—FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM CONTINUING 8. RE{FEES %> KRBigiEsa
OPERATIONS

The Group’s loss before taxation from continuing NEBRABERSSEB 2 BEAIER
operations is arrived at after charging: TG YR IEBEH
2012 2011
-5 —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHETT
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIKRA(TNEIEESEHM)
remuneration)
— wages, salaries and other benefits ~ — T& « & M EMEF 1,743 1,683
— retirement benefits scheme — RIREFEEIHER
contributions 187 304
Auditor’s remuneration ZEA 2
— current year — RFE 500 500
— other service fee — HiR%E = -
Depreciation of property, Y - MELKSEZITE
plant and equipment 743 613
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 10,841 18,836
Impairment of other receivables H th FEURBR SR 2 BB - 10
Impairment of intangible assets BIVEEZRE 4,952 29,981
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEMREZEE
plant and equipment - 1
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries & T M B A E 2 Eia - 181
Operating lease rentals in respect of THREF2LEHEOES
land and buildings 272 219
Legal and professional fees FRREXER 473 545
Net foreign exchange loss b 5 B 1858 = 4
Provision for guarantee income ERW A B S 4,000 -

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—T——F+-_HA=+—HIFZ

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EERESHM
REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ remuneration (@) EEEN
The details of emoluments of each director are BREEZHEFBOT

shown below:

Year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_FE——F+=-H=+—HI
B
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits contributions
Fees  H#& - 28 BHET Total
Name of director EEME e  REMBHE ARl fst
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FER FET T#ER FT#ER
Executive directors: HITESE :
Chu Yat Hong (Note 1) K—fn (KisE1) = = = =
Xie Xuan EfE 540 - - 540
Qiu Yue ity - - - -
Xiao Jing (Note 1) Big (ffzE1) - - - -
Non-executive director: EHITEE
Lo Mun Lam, Raymond B 24 - - 24
Independent non-executive BILFEHITES :
directors:
Wu Jixue A 30 - - 30
Zhang Daorong GRiE LR 48 - - 48
Feng Ke BE 18 - - 18
660 - - 660
Note 1: Appointed on 22 November 2012 M1 M- ZE——F+—A=-+=H
EZT

MR (2R BRAF 83
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iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-F——F+-A=+—AILFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(@) Directors’ remuneration (Cont’d)

Year ended 31 December 2011

9. EEREEHME)
(a) ESHM(E)

BEF-_FT——F+—-HA=+—HI

FE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits  contributions
Fees  %ig 38 BRER Total
Name of director EEHE e REMFE X 3t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT FHET FHEL
Executive directors: HiTES:
Xie Xuan e 540 - - 540
Yang Qiulin (Note 1) BROR(HRE1) - - - -
Qiu Yue iy - - - -
Non-executive directors: EHTES :
Lo Mun Lam, Raymond EHR 24 - - 24
Chandler Andrew James Chandler Andrew
(Note 2) James (FfizE2) 543 - 11 554
Independent non-executive BIIEHITEE :
directors:
Wu Jixue Tige 30 - - 30
Zhang Daorong EREES 48 - - 48
Feng Ke R 18 - - 18
1,203 - 1 1,214

Note 1: Resigned on 18 March 2011
Note 2: Resigned on 23 November 2011

M‘TEE\1 ﬁé\:%—ffﬁzﬂ TL/\E%"#EE
WiE2 N —F——#+—B=+=8

BT
There was no arrangement under which a director RERN - BEESEHRESRZWNE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during FRFH s ZH(ZT——F:

the year (2011: Nil).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

&) o



9.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EENREEHINE)
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid employees (b) AENREFHES

R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—T——F+-_HA=+—HIFZ

The five highest paid employees during the year
included one (2011: two) director whose
remuneration is set out in directors’ remuneration in
(a) above. Details of remuneration of the remaining

FR AfUKSFHEEPEE
—T—F M EF EHM
HIMEX@QEFHFM 8- B
= (—FT——%F =) FES

three (2011: three) non-director employees are as BEZHMZEBWOT ¢
follows:
2012 2011
—E—=%F —FE——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FET
Salaries, allowances and e R REMFE
other benefits 1,219 623
Retirement benefits scheme RINER B
contributions 18 59
1,237 682
Their emoluments fell within the following band: BEZMENTUTEE :
2012 2011
—T-C-F It
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZZ 1,000,000 7T 4 3

TSMEE (R BRAF
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iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-F——F+-A=+—AILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (RELATING TO
CONTINUING OPERATIONS)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income represents:

10. FiRHAX (ARBEEEER)

(a) MEEEEWMHBRZBIES:

2012 2011
-5 —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FTT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIEAR{IE — HFEFEH
Charge for the year REERZ - -
Current tax — PRC Enterprise BUEATRIE — PRI E
Income Tax P15
Charge for the year AEERE 215 1,213
Deferred tax (Note 23) EIEFRIE (M3E23) (3,949) (12,204)
Tax credit MIgE R (3,734) (10,991)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at the rate of 25% (2011: 25%).
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated
at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

BB S BIRFE N ERTUE
216.5% (= F——%F : 16.5%) 7t
& o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—T——F+-_HA=+—HIFZ

10. FIBHRAX (ARFREZRTS)
(%)
(b)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (RELATING TO
CONTINUING OPERATIONS) (Cont’d)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense

and accounting loss per the consolidated

FieBiAXEGe2EkERmE
RERBETEZ B BEZHR

statement of comprehensive income at mnF
applicable tax rates is as follows:
2012 2011
—E——% —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T
Loss before taxation BrEL AT E 1R (22,397) (52,520)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, 1% FRHEE B EH#E R 2 % F
calculated at the rates applicable Wl ik SN )
to profits in the jurisdictions EasTE 2 B ETIE
concerned (4,374) (10,484)
Income not subject to tax BRI WA = 612)
Expenses not deductible for TR 2
tax purpose 872 12,204
Unrecognised tax losses RIERFIBEE 3,716 248
Utilisation of previous recognised RN EMRHIAREE
tax loss = (143)
Deferred tax on intangible assets ELEE 2 FEERIE
(Note 23) (Ff3E23) (3,948) (12,204)
Income tax expense for the year FRZFABREX (3,734) (10,991)
(c) Income tax recognised directly in equity (c) EENERERZRED
2012 2011
—E——-%F —F—
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHIT
Deferred tax IEET IR
Arising on transactions with owners:  Ei#EB AN ETTR S FTESE ¢
Initial recognition on the equity VTS RERA B EE
component of convertible notes Z IS ED D (1,809) (558)
(1,809) (558)

TSMEE (R BRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 11, BRILEEER
In 2010, the Group ceased its logistics services segment RIZE—ZF > AEBERIEYRRED
operations. The cessation was consistent with the B2 EEE - BRIEAE DI 2 X158
Group’s strategies to focus its resources in the internet EREREBZRE  FAEETEH
protocol television business. BREREHMBERER L -
Accordingly, the operations of logistics services were At - ARFEREE SRS %R
classified as discontinued operations in accordance with FE5E [F1EHE ZIERBNE E MK
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sales and BER | PYRIRISES DR IEK
Discontinued Operations. The results of the discontinued BER S ASZEITHERER I
operations included in the consolidated statement of BRBEENT

comprehensive income are as follows:

2012 2011

—B-=F —T——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries ~ #ZER T B A 7 2 3% A - 24,110

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

12. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 12. AASI%H AMEILES

13.

COMPANY
2012 2011
ot 2%
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TFHIT
Amount of consolidated loss AR B T Rk R
attributable to owners of /NI 2PN
the Company dealt with in the AR
Company’s financial statements (5,637) (8,547)
Impairment loss on amounts due FEW B A RIZVE 7 REE 1B
from subsidiaries (750) (750)
Impairment loss on amounts due JE U BT JEB A B 5RIE
from subsidiaries written back Z A8 B - 707
Company’s loss for the year RNATF 2 EREE (6,387) (8,590)
The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the BE-_ZT-——_F+-_A=+—HL#HF
Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 B ARAHAARGEEEREREE
includes a loss of approximately HK$5,637,000 (2011: 18 495,637,000/ L( = F — — F
HK$8,547,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 8,547,000/ 7T ) B A AR R Al 2 %R
statements of the Company. RN °
DIVIDEND 13. IxB
The directors do not recommend the payment of any EETERMBE_T——F+_-A
dividends for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: =+ HBUEFRRETARE(ZF——
Nil). R o

TSMEE (R BRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE=F

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

—=Ff A= HIUFE

Basic (loss)/earnings per share
Continuing operations
The calculations of the basic loss per share are

14. &k (E8) B

BREX (ER) BFH

IFBEEET

FRENEEIRIEA T EBIRET

based on the following data: HE
2012 2011
—E—-F —FT——%F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET T
Loss for the year attributable to RABER AEE
the owners of the Company RNEF B (13,687) (23,264)
2012 2011
—Eg—_-F =%
Weighted average number of 38 R INEEIYEE
ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January #— 8 — BB Z&1T% @] 1,082,687,986 988,417,986
Effect of exercise of share options ﬂﬁ BRE T2 - 523,288
Effect of conversion of RSk s w2
convertible notes 68,862,919 80,800,192

Weighted average number of Rt+=—A=+—Hz
ordinary shares at 31 December TR N R

1,151,550,905

1,069,741,466

Discontinued operations BRIFAFE TS
The calculations of the basic earnings per share are BRERBF TIRBATBIRET
based on the following data: TE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHERT FAET
Profit for the year attributable to A BHEE AL
the owners of the Company FEEHFA = 24,110

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—T——F+-_HA=+—HIFZ

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont’d)
(@) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (Cont’d)

Discontinued operations (Cont’d)

14. B (EB8E) B (&)
(a)

BEREX(BE) B (E)
ARIFAFE TS (B)
2012 2011
—F——%F —T——%F

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January
Effect of exercise of share options
Effect of conversion of
convertible notes

LB R nEEHEE

R—A—BE#TEBK
TEERR S
ABABMEREFE

1,082,687,986

68,862,919

988,417,986
523,288

80,800,192

Weighted average number of
ordinary share at 31 December

Rt+—-—A=+—H
2T NS EE

1,151,550,905

1,069,741,466

Continuing and discontinued operations
The calculations of the basic (loss)/earnings per

FERKILEEET
BERAKR(BR), BN TREIAT

share are based on the following data: BRI E
2012 2011
- St 3 —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable 72 B G A JE(LHNEE
to the owners of the Company (E518) a7 (13,687) 846
2012 2011
ot 2%
Weighted average number of 8RR nEEIE R
ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January »— H—HBEZ1TZ @R 1,082,687,986 988,417,986
Effect of exercise of share options fﬂi BEAS i o - 523,288
Effect of conversion of HMAT MR R R 2 28
convertible notes 68,862,919 80,800,192

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

R+—A=+—
2EB %M%iﬂ%@

1,151,550,905

1,069,741,466

TSMEE (R BRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont’d)
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

(b)

Continuing operations

The calculations of the diluted loss per share are

based on the following data:

14. Bk (BE) B (&)
(b)

BRiEE (518) B
IFBEEET
FREEEBRRBATBRERE

2012 2011
—¥--F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET
Loss for the year attributable to KAREB NEIEREE
owners of the company B8 (13,687) (23,264)
After tax effect of effective interest
on the liability component of AR IR B E D B
convertible notes FEZBRTETE = 5,711
Loss for the year attributable to RABEE ANERARFE
owners of the company (diluted) B8 (HE) (13,687) (17,553)
2012 2011
—T——fF —T—%F

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December
Effect of exercise of share options
Effect of conversion of
convertible notes

RTZA=+t—BEBR
EFHEE

TEEREZZE

HRMABMBRRE T E

1,151,550,905 1,069,741,466
- 9,425,713

302,830,911

Weighted average number of
ordinary share (diluted) at

R+ZA=+—Bz
BB NEFH2E

31 December (#58) 1,151,550,905 1,381,998,090
Discontinued operations ARIFATEZTE
The calculations of the diluted earnings per share BRESERF TIRIBEA T EIRET
are based on the following data: FTE
2012 2011
—E—-fF =%
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHET
Profit for the year attributable to ¥iN/NEIE Y DN NS5
owners of the company il = 24,110

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—T——F+-_HA=+—HIFZ

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont’d) 14. SR (E8) B (&)
(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (Cont’d) (b) SKkEF(EBE) B (E)
Discontinued operations (Cont’d) IRIFATE TS (2)
2012 2011
e A
Weighted average number of RT+ZA=+—HBEBER
ordinary shares at 31 December N EE 1,151,550,905 1,069,741,466
Effect of exercise of share options (TEERE 2 - 9,425,713
Effect of conversion of
convertible notes R B e - - 302,830,911
Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—RH2
ordinary shares (diluted) at AR i EE
31 December (#8) 1,151,550,905 1,381,998,090
Continuing and discontinued operations IFERARILIFE TS
The calculations of the diluted (loss)/earnings per Bk (Eﬂ% )/ BREETIRIEAT
share are based on the following data: HIRFE -
2012 2011
—F-C=F —E——fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FHT
(Loss)/profit for the yea attributable A2 R A AE(EANEE
to owners of the company (E518), &7 (13,687) 846
After tax effect of effective interest THMEEEa ELHER
on the liability component of FMBZBEIETE
convertible notes - 5711

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable &R 5% A A B AFE

to owners of the company (diluted)  (E518) % F) (#5&) (13,687) 6,557
2012 2011
—ET—=-F —T——F
Weighted average number of RtTZA=+—BzLBRk
ordinary shares at 31 December e 1,151,550,905 1,069,741,466
Effect of exercise of share options ﬁﬁ B2 - 9,425,713
Effect of conversion of R R Eg s &
convertible notes - 302,830,911
Weighted average number of BRt+—A=+—HZ
ordinary share (diluted) at TRAT IR 2 B
31 December (#8) 1,151,550,905 1,381,998,090
The calculation of diluted loss per share is same as TEEBREEEEEGEERER
basic loss per share as the conversion of Eﬂéﬂﬁﬂ TR BB ERA
convertible notes has an anti-dilutive effect. BREETE -

TSMEE (R BRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W% - BERRE
Computer
Leasehold  Furniture and Motor
improvement and fixtures  equipment vehicles Total

HEYERE HRERKE TRRRG AE 4t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT

Cost; A

At 1 January 2011 W_E——F-f-H 157 692 4,101 637 5,587

Additions NE - - 5% - 594

Disposal e (145) (167) (1529) (476) 2311)

Exchange difference ERES - 17 107 8 132

At 31 December 2011 and at RZF-—%+-A=+-H

1 January 2012 k=E-—%-f-A 12 542 3,279 169 4,002

Additions NE - 3 - - 3

Writen of o - 81) (555) - (636)

Exchange difference ERES - 3 27 2 32
As at 31 December 2012 R-Z-—%+-f=+-A 12 467 2,751 171 3,401
Accumulated depreciation and BHEREESSE

impairment losses:

At 1 January 2011 WZE—F-A-H 153 621 3,064 637 4,475

Charge for the year REERY 2 34 517 - 613

Disposal e (145) (166) (1529 (475) 2,309

Exchange difference ERER - 15 i 7 93
At 31 December 2011 and at RZE——4%+ZA=F+-ARk

1 January 2012 “F--%-A-H 10 504 2,189 169 2812

Charge for the year TEERY 2 20 721 - 743

Written off fii - (77) (527) - (604)

Exchange difference ERES - 4 24 2 30
As at 31 December 2012 WZE-—%+-f=1-A 12 451 2,407 17 3,041
Net carrying amount: FREF(E -

As at 31 December 2012 WZE-—%+-A=1-H - 16 344 - 360

As at 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-A=1-H 2 38 1,090 - 1,130

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

DEVELOPMENT COSTS 16. FAEERA
HK$’000
FET
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—F—H 1,352
Disposal HE (1,352)
At 31 December 2011 and RN-_Z—F+=-A=+—H
31 December 2012 r—FE——F+—-A=+—H -
Accumulated amortisation: ZEHiEss -
At 1 January 2011 RZZE——F—H—H 1,352
Written back on disposal B B B (O] (1,352)
At 31 December 2011 and RZE——F+ZA=+—H
31 December 2012 r—E——F+-_A=+—H -
Net carrying amount: ARES{E :
As at 31 December 2012 R-_E——F+-_A=+—H -
As at 31 December 2011 N-_E——F+=-A=+—H -
The amount represented direct development costs ZRIEFE R [ SRR A E 8 K 4t
incurred for the development of “Advanced Distribution PRES 2 BEMEKARBAME) - I

and Transportation Systems” less government grant, and B ARAD = F#5H -
was amortised on a straight-line basis over three years.

TSMEE (R BRAF
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iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F—_F+-A=1T—HIULFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BLEE
2012 2011
T —F——
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT
Cost/valuation BB
At 1 January and at 31 December R—A—BE+=A
=+—H 226,668 226,668
Accumulated amortisation and St RO EEE
impairment losses
At 1 January n—H—H
Amortisation ey 84,673 65,837
Impairment NERIE] 101,342 71,361
Amortisation for the year FERE 10,841 18,836
Impairment for the year FARIE 4,952 29,981
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 201,808 186,015
Net carrying amount: REDFE :
As at 31 December R+—A=+—~H 24,860 40,653

The intangible assets represent an exclusive right of
usage of Broadcast of Audio-Video Program On Web
Permit ({2 B 4845 E 15 B2 &0 B 7F 7] 5%) (the “Permit”)
granted by the holder of the Permit (the “Holder”) to a
subsidiary of the Company under an exclusive
agreement entered into between that subsidiary of the
Company and the Holder. The Permit commenced on 1
October 2007 and will expire on 30 September 2015.
The fair value of the Permit on the date of acquisition of
that subsidiary by the Company has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by Messrs. BMI
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group. Messrs. BMI
Appraisals Limited is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar assets.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

BV EERESBRERREHMATA
& (FAEDFHAEA(HEADRER
REIMEAREFA AR L Z BRI Z
BHHZAZMBRRRE ZBRER
B-FAER_TTLF+HA—HBHHA
B R _E-—RAFAA=TAHE
e FFAIE RN AR NEZNBARE
Az AV ERENEEYEREZHT
REREXMGHEMPDEERFHEARA
AT Z MEMER - FRERFEA
RARATENEMBESGEE - WNFT
HEUEE T BAAEEER RO L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d) 17. B EBE (&)
The recoverable amount of the Permit has been o ook SEREEFHREE
determined based on a value in use calculation. For the EITET - MEEARmS @ o
purpose of the impairment test, the recoverable amount ek e zEIRIELRESRTIHER A
of the Permit is in accordance with valuation prepared by AR EBEEEEBHE VKBEERS
Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited using cash flow TIERMGRGEEREMEE - XK
projections based on financial budgets approved by FBERE XSz = FHEEHAF
management covering a 2%/4 year period up to the EmBEH - EBRMATELIR R 512.08%(—
expiration date of the Permit and a pre-tax discount rate T ——F :28.41%) * ¥ E R
of 12.98% (2011: 28.41%) with an average 27.7% (2011: BT 7% (ZF——%F :50%) c %K
50%) growth rate. This growth rate is based on the RIREABITESETENE T W ES
relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed BEBTE T REERR - cHE(F
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant AEE EMIrEEREMLER SR
industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use A BREeEnrtER BhBIEETHE
calculation relate to the estimation of cash inflows/ EEF - G IBRIEEEHIE Y
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross EAERE N EEEN SR ETEERET o
margin. Such estimates are based on the past
performance by holding the Permit and management’s
expectations for the market development.
The valuation of the Permit as at 31 December 2012 was O BN —_E——F+-_HA=+—H>
RMB20,000,000 (2011: RMB33,000,000) equivalent to &8 A8 A RK20,000,000T (== ——
approximately HK$24,860,000 (2011: HK$40,653,000). 0 AR M33,000,0007) 0 HBE R
Further impairment of approximately HK$4,952,000 24,860,000/ T( = & — — ¢ :
(2011: HK$29,981,000) was charged to the profit or 40,653,000 7T ) # — F A B K
loss. The circumstance leading to the impairment of the 4,952,000 T( = & — — F:
Permit was mainly due to the slowdown of growth rate of 29,981,000/ 7C) NB2EHIG - A&
subscribers of IPTV services arising from keen EEREZIEETE A ME B E R
competition within the market. SEHEBERRBEPL 218 ERWIER
B o
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMBABZH#EE
2012 2011
ot —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FABT
Investments in unlisted shares, at cost &ﬁ}ﬁ‘/\#iﬁq‘ﬁ& D IRA 14,473 14,473
Amounts due from subsidiaries e B 140,564 143,728
155,037 158,201
Less: Impairment losses O EEE (124,727) (123,977)
30,310 34,224

TSMEE (R BRAF
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iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-F——F+-A=+—AILFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 18.

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 31 to consolidated financial statements

B AT Zz#Em ()
RN FENHBARZ SR REER
e B REETERS -

RRABEEMB AT ZFBHNGA M
TR MIFEST o

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. BSRHthFEULARTR
The Group The Company
XEEH AAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g-=-F —T——F ZB-Zf —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET FEXT FET
Trade receivables SN 1,367 - - -
Prepayments, deposits and ~ FBRFIE - 24 &

other receivables Hith pE U BE 38 14,466 8,121 - 46
15,833 8,121 - 46

The credit terms granted by the Group to customers are
determined on a case-by-case basis with reference to
the size of service contracts, recurrent services provided
to sales with the customers and their credit history. The
Group makes provision for trade receivables based on
specific review. Provision is made against trade
receivables after considering the amount due,
creditability of customers and other qualitative factors.

AEBRTEPIRHZEERRTIZSER
BEHNELE MREEPRHERMZH
ERBRREZBEELZENBRE
E o ARBEIZER TR E 5 B RN
EHEE AREERERIPESH
EPEEREMEERRREE SR
RRAREL A -

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the Group RAEERBERRCESEWERZE
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: oM -

2012 2011

—g--f —F—F

HK$°000 HK$’000

THERT FAT

0 to 30 days 0E 30K 1,367 -

Total trade receivables B SRR B 1,367 -

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

20.

21.

The credit period of the Group’s trade receivables ranges
from 60 days to 90 days. For certain customers with
long-estimated relationship and good past histories, a
longer credit period may be granted.

No interest was charged on the trade receivables. The
Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.
The management of the Group monitors the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt and considers

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

19. B RHMEUERRR (&

AEEZEZERBERZEEHN TR
60ZE90H - LB FTEHMKIFEREABEREL
BARGTTEH2EFEME EREEH
AL -

ZEE SRR R - AEE#
B EESRFEEAERR - A&E
ZEREBERSAMBIESER K
CEFE URSDEREZRE 25

adequate impairment loss has been recognised for ERARHBEEERE(WNFE) MEES
irrecoverable amount, if necessary. None of the trade JE U BR 25 B HA sk IS o
receivable is either past due or impaired.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. RERFNEEEHY
The Group
S 1L
2012 2011
—g-=f —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FAT
Cash and bank balances Be MIR1T4ERS 46 655

Bank balances comprise deposits with bank held by the
Group with an original maturity of three months or less
which are interest-bearing at prevailing saving deposits
rates in the PRC is 0.35% (2011: 0.5%) per annum.

BITEABEERAEEFEMREEA
AZEANEEBMZEITER  BEi%
FEIRITREGRFIEGE - FHEEA
0.35% (ZZF——1F : 0.5%) °

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. ESREMEMIRR
The Group The Company
AEEH AAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
“B-=-f —T——F CZB-=ZF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET FHET FET
Trade payables B S EMNER = - - _
Accruals and TERBRANM
other payables H o pETERER 40,049 36,172 2,636 4,758
40,049 36,172 2,636 4,758

TSMEE (R BRAF

99



100

Annual Report 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F—_F+-A=1T—HIULFE

22. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 22, T[iRREHE
The Group and the Company FEEREAT
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2011 Rh_E——F—H—H 73,541
Issue of shares upon conversion of iR ERBETRG
convertible notes (17,537)
Imputed interest expense charged HERNBERYYH 5,711
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 RZE—F+_A=+—"HBK
—2——F—H—H 61,715
Issue of shares upon conversion of R R R AN BB TR D
convertible notes (66,247)
Imputed interest expense charged HEF BT I 4,532

At 31 December 2012

RZE——F+=-_A=+—H -

Pursuant to the Note Instrument Agreements dated on
11 October 2010, the Company issued convertible notes
at a nominal value of HK$86,349,999 at zero coupon
interest, of which the HK$10,077,044 was issued to
Lucky Peace Limited, a company wholly owed by the
executive director of the Company, Mr. Qiu Yue and
HK$76,272,955 was issued to Asian Dynamics
International Limited, a shareholder of the Company, for
a term of two years.

The convertible notes holders may assign or transfer the
whole or any part of the convertible notes to any party
subject to the Company’s approval. Meanwhile, the
Company may at any time after the issue of the
convertible notes up to and including the maturity date,
redeem the outstanding principal amount of notes by
payment of cash in amount equivalent to the outstanding
principal amount.

The convertible notes holders may at any business day
from the six months after the issuance of the convertible
notes falling on the second anniversary from the date of
issue of convertible notes convert the whole or any part
of the convertible notes into ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.10 each at the conversion price of
HK$0.218 per conversion share.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

BREAMA_ZT—ZFTA+—RHAZE
BXEBEHZ AQA#TTHEHIE
86,349,999 B T TR AT MR TR - H
H10,077,044 8 T Z AR FIR AT T
Lucky Peace Limited (AN2 &)$117 2 % i
MEFE2EHEBEZR2A) 55
76,272,955 7T 2 FI AR R IR B EAT P
Asian Dynamics International Limited ( 7K

RAER) - REIME -

MEREEFAANERLIEE 2%
B ABRBRRETERMAL  HELAE
BARRBZHET AHEE - R AR
AR AR BERTEHREHA
(EERBREZB) EHATAERE - &
BXMNEEN R AL BASE R EK
H o BREMERRAR LR RIBARSH -

AR ERB AR AR RZRET
‘eMBEAZHE  ERIMEEERETH
HREE S — EBEF H AT —EE
B BARBESRIBEN0218E
TC BB REMD TR RRR BN
NEIEREEO0I0AETZ BB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont’d)

The convertible notes contain two components: liability
and equity components. The fair values of the liability
component of the convertible notes are measured using
a market interest rate of approximately 9.503% for an
equivalent non-convertible note. The remaining balance,
representing the equity conversion component, is
included in the equity under convertible notes reserve.

On 9 February 2011, a convertible notes holder
converted the convertible notes in the principal amount
of HK$18,857,000 into 86,500,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.218 per
share.

On 24 June 2011, a convertible notes holder converted
the convertible notes in the principal amount of
HK$1,475,860 into 6,770,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the conversion price of HK$0.218 per
share.

On 9 October 2012, convertible notes holders converted
the convertible notes in the principal amount of
HK$66,017,139 into 302,830,911 ordinary shares of the
Company at conversion price of HK$0.218 per share.

Imputed interest on the convertible notes for the year
ended 31 December 2012 is calculated using the
effective interest method by applying the effective interest
rate of 9.503% per annum.

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

22, T[HAMRER (&

ATk EEeEMERD - AERN
B - TMBRRAREBO IR
BERRBTAIREREZMEEEXRD
9.503% =T & ° 8% T #B {0 (BN an 85 #2 &P
) NIRRT IR IR i o #eam o

NR-_Z——F-ANA —RZABRE
BRHEEARLBESR218ETIER
$%818,857,0007 jL 2 Al AR i 518
/86,500,000 f& 2N A &) & A% o

MN-ZT——FEXA-+HE —%&A#k
REBEFEAZRLREFTR0218FB T
ARG %EE1,475,860 8 T2 Al AR = 5
#56,770,000 fE AN A B E A% o

R-ZZT——F+ANLH  JBEERZEEE
B ABE A% 5 566,017,13978 7T Al iR
ZRRFRO2ISE THBEER A
302,830,911 AR A E@AF -

REBE-ZE——F+-_A=+—HIF

BA#EREGHENE T RAERAN X
R ERRF R 9.603% 51 & °

TSMEE (R BRAF
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iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F—_F+-A=1T—HIULFE

23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
The major deferred tax liabilities recognised and

23. IEEHIEERE
AEERBEFEOHRY T BRLTH

movements thereon during the current and prior years BEEERESERMmT -
are summarised below:
The Group *EE
Intangible Convertible
assets notes Total
W EE oREER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HIK$’'000
T TFHET FHT
At 1 January 2011 RZZE—F—H—H 22,368 2,367 24,735
Credited to profit or loss A T g8 (12,204) - (12,204)
Recognised directly in equity EERERSTER - (558) (558)
At 31 December 2011 and N-—_E——F+=HA
at 1 January 2012 =t+—HERZZ——F
—H—H 10,164 1,809 11,973
Credited to profit or loss AR F Sk &R (3,949) - (3,949)
Recognised directly in equity HER SR ER - (1,809) (1,809)
As at 31 December 2012 N-_ZT——F+_—A1
=+—H 6,215 - (6,215)
The Company AAT
Convertible
notes
iR ER
HIK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2011 R-_E——F—H—H 2,367
Recognised directly in equity HEREERER (558)
At 31 December 2011 and at 1 January 2012 N-E——F+_-_A=+—H
;rZFT—-——F—H—H 1,809
Recognised directly in equity BERERPER (1,809)
As at 31 December 2012 N-_E——F+-HA=+—H -

At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax asset has
not been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses
due to the unpredictability stream of future taxable profits

that will be available against which the tax losses can be

utilised.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—T——F+-_HA=+—HIFZ

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. lgX
Number of shares Amount
BirsE &8
HK$'000
FET
Authorised (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each): EERA(BRAEI0ET L BR) :
Balance at 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011, RZE——%-A-R ZF——%
1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 +-A=+-B -ZE--fF-F-H
RZB-——F+-A=+—Hz&H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid (Ordinary shares of BETRARRA(BREECI0ET

HK$0.10 each) LEk)

Balance at 1 January 2011 RZE-——F-R—-RAz&H 988,417,986 08,842
Issue of shares by conversion of convertible notes RBTAREEMETRG (1)

(note 1) 93,270,000 9,327
Issue of shares by exercise of share options (note 2)  R7TEEEE IHE M3 77Mk (7 (st 2) 1,000,000 100
Balance at 31 December 2011 and RZE—%F+-A=1t-HR

at 1 January 2012 “Z-—E-R-HyzE#® 1,082,687,986 108,269
Issue of shares by conversion of convertible notes E R R EEmETki

(note 3) (Mi7E3) 302,830,911 30,283
Balance at 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=+-Bz&% 1,385,518,897 138,552

MR (2R BRAF 103
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For the year ended 31 December 2072
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

24. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

Notes:

(1)

On 9 February 2011, 86,500,000 ordinary shares with
par value of HK$0.10 each were issued at a conversion
of the principal price of HK$18,857,000 of the zero-
coupon convertible notes issued by the Company on 11
October 2010 within 24 months maturity, at the
conversion price of HK$0.218 per ordinary share. The
conversions gave rise to a credit to share capital of
HK$8,650,000 and the remaining balance of
approximately HK$10,706,000 was credited to share
premium.

On 24 June 2011, 6,770,000 ordinary shares with par
value of HK$0.10 each were issued at a conversion of
the principal price of HK$1,475,860 of the zero-coupon
convertible notes issued by the Company on 11 October
2010 within 24 months maturity, at the conversion price
of HK$0.218 per ordinary share. The conversions gave
rise to a credit to share capital of HK$677,000 and the
remaining balance of approximately HK$883,000 was
credited to share premium.

On 24 June 2011, 1,000,000 ordinary shares with par
value of HK$0.10 each were issued as a result of an
exercise of share options granted by the Company under
a specific mandate on 5 September 2007 at a
consideration of HK$275,000 at the exercise price of
HK$0.275 per share, of which HK$175,000 was credited
to share premium.

On 9 October 2012, 302,830,911 ordinary shares with
par value of HK$0.10 each were issued as a result of the
exercise of the convertible notes holders with a principal
amount of HK$66,017,139 convertible notes issued by
the Company on 11 October 2010 within 24 months
maturity, at the conversion price of HK$0.218 per
ordinary share. The conversions gave rise to a credit to
share capital of HK$30,283,091 and the remaining
balance of approximately HK$46,931,000 was credited
to share premium.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

24. & (4E)

BIaE -

M

R-ZE——F-FAHE  RIEBEAQF
BA*i TE+A+—BBITZEEN

BREZERE(R-_+HEAREEH) 2K
i18,857,000/%755ﬁ BITEHREE
0.107 7T 2 86,500,000 f% & i i% - 3
BEAEREE0.218BT - ZEH
i EE A % K #E BR 8,650,0008 T A #
T #5 £4 #910,706,00078 7T 2 5+ AR5

R_E— *E/\ﬂ +rOH - REBAR
AAN_ZE—ZTF+A+—HETZE
E\—JT@HXKTJ%(E(‘_‘HETIHW FH9)
2R 1,475,860 L - BITERE
{E0.1078 7T .2 6,770,000 A% L@ A% - 3
}@157/%’% @HX0218/%7E uAArR,
A IR BR677,000/8 7T - BT
4EER#7 883,000 T AT ARRD B -
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R-ZBE——F+HFhE  EHEZE
BEATEARTR -_E—FFE+ 7
+—HE{TA £ 5 566,017,139 7T
Z AR ERE (R =1+ @A REIE) -
1THMRMEE0.1078 T 2 302,830,911
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—T——F+-_HA=+—HIFZ

25. RESERVES 25. fi#iE
The Group AEH
Convertible
notes
Share Capital  Translation reserve  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve Tk losses Total

kit A%RE 2 ERRE 2 FREE  RH6H it
HKG000  HKS000  HKBO00  HKEOOO  HKS00D  HKS000

TR T TR AL TRL TRL

At 1 January 2011 RZE——F-f-H 124,080 26,020 3,456) 11,979 (378,075) (219472)
Profit for the year KEFEH - - - - 846 846
Exchange difference arising on translation  #E BN EREL EHES
of foreign operations - - 2,274 - - 2,214
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ A£E 2 AUHLE - - 2,274 - 846 3,120
Issue of shares by exercise of share options 171 B8 IR 217 fk 175 - - - _ 175
Cost on issue of shares BARGRE (34 - - - - (34)
Issue of shares upon conversion of REATHRRERERITRG
convertible notes 11,589 - - (3,379) - 8,210
Deferred tax libllties of convertiole notes W& =5 2 BILHEEE - - - 558 - 558
11,730 - - (2,821) - 8,909
At 31 December 2011 and RZB—F+ZA=1-H
at 1 January 2012 kZE-ZF-f-H 135,790 26,020 (1,182) 9,158 (877,229 (207,443)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (13,687) (13,687)
Exchange difference arising on ranslation  #E G EREL 7 ES 2
of foreign operations - - (139) - - (139)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEERAGEES - - (139 - (13,687) (13,826)
Issue of shares upon conversion of REREREER R TRD
convertible notes 46,931 - - (10,967) - 35,964
Deferred tax liabilties of convertiole notes 2R E 5 2 BILHERE - - - 1809 - 1,809
At 31 December 2012 R-F--%+-RA=1+-H 182,721 26,020 (1,321) - (390,916) (183,496)
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HE_F—_F+-A=1T—HIULFE

25. RESERVES (Cont’d) 25. flifE (&
The Company b, /-1 |
Convertible
notes
Share  Contributed reserve Accumulated
premium surplus TR losses Total
TRt fE B4R L3 iR a3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TET TATL TR
At 1 January 2011 W-B-—£-A-B 14060 13882 11979 (318567  (168,646)
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (8,590) (8,590)
Issue of shares by exercise of share options RTEERREMETRA 175 - = - 175
Cost on issue of shares ERHRA (34) - - - (34)
Issue of shares upon conversion of REAMARZHEERTIRG 11589 - (3,379) - 8210
convertible notes
Deferred tax liabilties of convertible notes THRREE EEHEEE - - 558 - 558
At 31 December 2011 and at 1 January 2012 RZE——&+ZA=1-8 135790 13,882 9158 (327,157)  (168,327)
k=F-—%-A-H
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (6,387) (6,387)
Issue of shares upon conversion of REBBRRZEEETRG 46,931 - (10967) - 35,964
convertible notes

Deferred tax liabilties of convertible notes TARFE EENEAR - - 1,809 - 1,809
At 31 December 2012 R-E--#+-A=+-H 182,721 13,882 - (333,544) (136,941)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the net asset value
of a subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares
as at the date of the group reorganisation.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES (Cont’d)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium, capital redemption reserve and
contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders,
subject to the condition that the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
share premium, capital redemption reserve and
contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of its assets would be thereby
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital account.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate of the
share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired
through an exchange of shares as at the date of the
group reorganisation and the waive of loans by a related
party on 1 February 2004.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note

3(p).

The convertible notes reserve represents the equity
component of outstanding convertible notes issued by
the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible notes in note
3(h).

At the end of the reporting period, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Company did not have
any reserves available for distribution to shareholders of
the Company (2011: Nil).

SHARE OPTIONS
The Company does not currently have any employee
share option scheme in effect.

25.

26.

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F—_F+-A=1T—HIULFE

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Balances and transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions
between the Group and other related parties are as
follows:

()  Amount due to a director, Xie Xuan, of
approximately HK$5,813,000 (2011:
HK$5,276,000) is unsecured, non-interest bearing
and is not due for repayment within the next twelve
months.

(i)~ Amount due to immediate holding company, Asian
Dynamics International Limited of approximately
HK$25,859,000 (2011: HK$21,411,000) is
unsecured, bearing interest at the annual rate of 5%
and is not due for repayment within the next twelve
months.

Interest paid and payable to the immediate holding
company for the year amounted to approximately
HK$1,130,000 (2011: HK$1,024,000).

(i)  During the year, the Group charged consultancy
service income of approximately HK$3,691,000
(2011: Nil) to EMFHES B R A F], a company
controlled by Mr. Qiu Yue, the director of the
Company. The amount of HK$746,000 (2011: Nil)
was unsettled at 31 December 2012 and included
in trade receivables.

In last year, the Group received advertising service
income of approximately HK$5,515,000 from /1|
R E S B BR A A, a company controlled by Mr.
Qiu Yue, the director of the Company. These
transactions were carried out on normal
commercial terms and with reference to prevailing
market price. The amount of HK$1,470,000 was
unsettled at 31 December 2012 and included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

27. EXFAEANTRS
ARAREEMERR (BARAZEEA
T) 2 B R X BEREARE BT UM
B MARRAMEARE - AEEER
REATZ R BHERBAT

(i)

(i)

ERNEFHBE 2RKREBEH A
5,813,000/ jt( = & — — & :
5,276,000 7T ) THEIRIF - 2B &
BEARFA2ME B REE -

B B % A &) Asian Dynamics
International Limited % 8 %) &
25,859,000/ T( = & — — F -
21,411,000/ 7T ) Y 4R - 12 4F
K% ETERBHRERARKAI2ME AR

g -

FR - ENRENERZERARZ
F B4 41,130,000 T (=82 ——
£ 11,024,000 7T) °

FR - AEBRARFESLINBE
ERES 2 ARIEMNPIRESBR
AR FE A RBKRALD
3,691,000 jL( = & — — & :
L))o RZE——F+_A=+—
B 7460008 (=& — —F:
) RAREBWFTAE SEUERTR o

TBEFENRN - ARFEEEMNF
BMESERARI(—RELRQAE
EEPME AT 2 AR WE ES
BR & UK A 495,515,000 7T © % &
RS — MR FEBERLLELER
THmEET - NZE——F+=HA
=+—H 1,470,000 JT 14 & &
BT ATEMRIE - e REME
WEkIg -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

(iv)

The Group entered into cooperation agreement
with Guangdong Yingxin Xinxi Investment Limited,
a company controlled by Mr. Chu Yat Hong.
Pursuant to the agreement, both parties agreed to
operate and develop the business of the internet
protocol television services and the Group entitled
40% of the profit. During the year, the share of
profit amounted to approximately HK$1,030,000
(2011: HK$1,204,000). The amount of
approximately HK$826,000 (2011: HK$124,000)
was unsettled at 31 December 2012 and included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables.

During the year, the Group made provision for
guarantee income of HK$4,000,000 (2011: Nil) to
Guangdong Yingxin Xinxi Investment Limited in
respect of internet protocol television services.

Included in prepayment, deposits and other
receivables was an amount of approximately
HK$2,577,000 (2011: HK$2,837,000) due from
Guangdong Yingxin Xinxi Investment Limited. Mr.
Chu Yat Hong is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and he has also been a director of the
Company since 22 November 2012,

The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management during the year is as follows:

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

27. EXFAEANLTR S (E)

(iv)

REBEHER M ERMER 2 A A
BRABEEMEEBRARG VA
etk - RIEZHZE  EHREE
BN OBAEGSRE AR
AEEZEL0% G - FR - H=Z
i A 491,030,000 T (=& — —
F :1,204,00087L) c RZE—=
F+-—A=+—H ' 4826,000%
TL(ZZF——% 1 124,000 7T) &
REBWETABNFRE - Ze RH
L FEURERIR ©

REAN - NEBE BB AERERS
MERBREEMNEEEGRAREL
2 FE R U $ 8 3R I8 3 4,000,000
BIL(ZE—F 1 H|) -

JERFIE - B REMERFUEE
FRERERBEEMEEBR AR
FRIAH2577,0008 L ( =T — —
F 1 2,837,000870) ° K—M LA
BARGREERE BA-T——
E+—A-+t-—BRARQTIZE
% °

BREENTEEBABREFARAZH
Bz

The Group
FEE
2012 2011
ot —E—

HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT
Short-term benefits EERF 996 1,443
Post-employment benefit EREEF - 23
996 1,466

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

REERFEETBABZHMIIH
FMEBREREBRAZRELT
LBERETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-F——F+-A=+—AILFE

28. COMMITMENTS
Operating lease commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

28. i
EEHEERE
AR 2 ISR - 7N 5 B AR 48 T AT RS AT
MEARBRINY SEBERELE

cancellable operating leases as follows: AR
2012 2011
—¥--F —E——fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Within one year —FR - 225
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEERF(BEEERS) = 80
- 305
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. MIBITH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (@) BMBIAZER
The Group
FEE
2012 2011
- e 3 —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Financial assets MBEE
Loans and receivables (including B R EBERK
cash and cash equivalent) (BEREMRESED)
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E A EUAR IR 15,833 8,121
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTHER 46 655
15,879 8,776
Financial liabilities IHEaE
Trade and other payables 25N EMERRR 40,049 36,172
Amount due to a director N —ZESEHIE 5,813 5,276
Amount due to immediate R EEERARRIE
holding company 25,859 21,411
Convertible notes AR EE - 61,715
71,721 124,574

1 10 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited



29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(@)

(b)

R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

20. MBIR(E)

Categories of financial instruments (Cont’d) (a) HMBIBZERNE)
The Company
EAT
2012 2011
—T—C-F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
THERT FHETT
Financial assets MEEE
Loans and receivables (including B R EBERK
cash and cash equivalents) (BERERREEEY)
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE M EWERK = 46
Amounts due from subsidiaries G NG e ] 30,310 34,224
30,310 34,270
Financial liabilities BMEaE
Trade and other payables H 5 REMBEIRR 2,636 4,758
Amount due to a director Bt — R EENIE 46 46
Amounts due to subsidiaries N EPNGIE ] 139 4,103
Amount due to immediate FERTEBIER A FIRIE
holding company 25,878 21,897
Convertible notes GIEi 7 = 61,715
28,699 92,519
Financial risk management and policies (b) HAFBEIGEERBIR
The Group’s major financial instruments include AEBZFENBIARTEEIR
trade and other receivables, cash and bank HEaEWERR - IRe RIRITAR
balances, trade and other payables, amount due to B REMEMNERR - BRNESK

a director, amount due to immediate holding
company and convertible notes. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

A e B BER A B RIE N AT
BEE - MWERHTAZFBREN
MERAM R EE - T XS FH
TAZHEBRR BFEMSRER
(E¥EREANXEAR)  FERR
MRBEZRR - A MR EE
LR ZBX - ERBEEMEYH
ZER - BREFARCETEE
R

TSMEE (R BRAF
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For the year ended 31

December 2012

BE-F——%#+-A=+—ALLFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Fina

ncial risk management and policies

(Cont’d)

(i)

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency turnover and cost of services and
certain trade receivables, bank deposits and
trade and other payables are denominated in
foreign currencies and thus expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign
currency risk should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
significant foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

20. MBIR(E)

(b)

MR EERBIR(E)
(i) WEEE
SRR

REBEE T H B R R AINE
REEXBRRBRA - M
HTHEZRWIER - RI1TE
X RE S REMENERRT)
ASNBEHE - ABAREE A
N R o B IR E & Y
IRELER  AERHER
B B INE R

AEBzERIEEREE
REERERBSHRZE
EEWT

Assets Liabilities
aE BfE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—®-——-F —T——F ZB-=ZH —T—F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET T FHET
Renminbi ARHE 7,381 5,311 26,891 30,696

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

20. B IR (A
(b) BAISEMERREE (2

(Cont’d)
(i) Market risk (Cont’d) () TSGR (E)
Sensitivity analysis B E ST
The Group is mainly exposed to the effect of AEBTEZEMH AREKE

fluctuation in Renminbi. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in the functional
currency exchange rates of the Company
against the Renminbi. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency exchange rates. A
positive number below indicates a decrease
in loss for the year where the functional
currency of the Group strengthen 5% against
Renminbi. For a 5% weakening of the
functional currency of the Group against the
Renminbi, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss, and the
balances below would be negative.

FEZER - TRFIANE
BRABZIMEEEEAR
WZER EF N THE% 28
REDHT - 6% 2R EEERE
ANBEITINE R 2 A BB IE
BRERBCBERELE K
REBRBHINEERNGE
HMEA 2 AT RERE) 2 A -
HREISTEFAEREELE
UoNEstE2E%IER - I
BIRINETER 2 5% EF T H
MBEMEBRZFGER 21
B THEHRRAEEZ
DEEE L AREIEY
B FEBEZED - &R
SEZYREERILARKR
5% RIg@HERELESR
BRRZEZE M NIEER

Hesas -

Effect on loss for

the year and

accumulated losses

HeERBERRETEE Effect on equity
a1 HigEmzaeE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—®-—& -T—45 C-B--F - &
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH#ET FETT F#T FH&TT
Renminbi AR 976 1,269 976 1,269
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For the year ended 31

December 2012

HE_F—_F+-A=1T—HIULFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Fina

ncial risk management and policies

(Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate risks

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to fixed rate borrowings from
immediate holding company (see note 27).
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to bank balances (see note
20). The management considers the Group’s
exposure of the bank balances to interest rate
risk is not significant as they have a short
maturity period.

Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties, is the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

20. MBIR(E)

(b)

MERAREERBE(Z)
() TSGR (E)
TR 7 2

(i)

REEZ AFEMEERE
EHEFEERERARZE
EMEEERBE(RME
27) - ARBZRE RN ER
R EHERITEREME
20) - EEERS - HNIRTT
BB HERE AR
B S ERIT AR N R AL R
K e

SERMBEE
RZE——ZF+=ZRA=*+—
B WaEXSEHFRERT
BSEAMESHAEEE
K BEAzEREER
% BERA AR R F S
BrERRVBEEZRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)

(i)

(iii)

Credit risk management (Cont’d)

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation
to trade receivables, the management has
strengthened the credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the
management reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each reporting
date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the management considers that
the Groups credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the majority of the counterparties are
reputable banks or banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies
on issuing of shares and borrowings from
related parties as a significant sources of
funding.

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

20. B IR (A
(b) BAISEMERREE (2

(i) EEEBEE(E)

BT EEREREKE SRR
ZIEERR  EEEC MRS
FERB FEFEHLLEM
ERRERF BARSKIURE
TR EBHAREER - It
s EEREBRGTEMER
BHEHRHEEHRZ AU
O£ %8 - R REEWE 2
SIRAE T 5 2 R 18 B 1R
oMM E BEEHEES
RBAKEZEERREAX
FIREL

nBEE I EERRABIR
AR ZHFIERE
BEREEFAEELE TS
AR B ESEZIRTT

(i) REEEEEEE

AEBFBEERDE AR
B 2ERReRAEFE
WMZKF BERBEER
BRRBABZKTE AR
RRRZEEMRT  BAHR
ERBRBTE - BITRMD
LREBMEALZEER
SEZETEESHIR
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies

20. B IR (A
(b) BAISEMERREE (2

(Cont’d)
(iii) Liquidity risk management (Cont’d) (i) FENEREPEERE (E)
The following tables detail the Group and the TRFVWAREBRKARRZ
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for EaBEZ8TAEHRNEE
its financial liabilities which are based on the o HERNAKEE NAR A
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities AwEREBZ SR HEM
and the earliest date on which the Group and HE VB EKBERIEES
the Company can be required to pay. I o
The Group *EE
More than
On demand 3 months Total
or less than but less undiscounted Total
3months  than1 year Morethan  cash flows carrying
HEXS  ZEANL 1year KB amountat
PR3ER  EOR-E gil-£  Benes RESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2012 ZF-CF Thn Thn Thn Thn Tin
Trade and other payables BSREMERER 40,049 = = 40,049 40,049
Amount due to a director Eff—2E23E - - 5813 5813 5813
Amount dlue to immediate ERERERAAZE
holding company - - 25,859 25,859 25,859
40,049 - 31,672 7,721 1,121
2011 e
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERES 36,172 - - 36,172 36,172
Amount due to a director EN—2E2578 - - 5276 5,276 5,276
Amount due to immediate ERERERAAFE
holding company - - 21,411 21,411 21,411
Convertible notes TRREE - 61,715 - 61,715 61,715
36,172 61,715 26,687 124,574 124,574

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

20. B IR (A
(b) BAISEMERREE (2

(iii) Liquidity risk management (Cont’d) (i) FHEELEPGEE (&)
The Company AAT
More than
On demand 3 months Total
or less than but less undiscounted Total
3months  than 1 year Morethan  cash flows carrying
BEXE  ZEANL 1year b amount
PRIER  EOR-E Bill-£  BenEH RE4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2012 “F-ZFtZRA=t-H Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin
Trade and other payables ZHRENERE 2,636 - - 2,636 2,636
Amount due to a director ER-4E230 = - 4 4 4
Amounts due to subsidiaries  ERTHBATZE 139 - - 139 139
Amount due to immediate EERERAFZE
holding company - - 25,878 25,878 25,878
At 31 December 2011 ZE——5+ZA=1-H 2,175 - 25,924 28,699 28,699
Trade and other payables BSREMERER 4758 - - 4,758 4,758
Amount due to a director ER-4E33% - - 46 4 4
Amounts due to subsidiaries KB AZE 4103 - - 4103 4103
Amount due to immedate ERERIRAIZE
holding company - - 21,897 21,897 21,897
Convertible notes hREE - 61,715 - 61,715 61,715
8,861 61,715 21,943 92,519 92,519
Fair value () A¥FE
The fair values of financial assets and financial MBAERMBARZ A FEKT
liabilities are determined as follows: PIREERE -

° The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active markets are determined
with reference to the quoted market bid and
ask prices respectively; and

o The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions.

BB BREGR MR L AE
BhmEEEZMBEENMM
BREZAFETIDHZE
Pz misEAEBREHE
BRET &

HP B EEMRMBAEEZ
NP ERBEEEEMTEE
BABEE ZFEEEAE
RENEBIZMER5E
BMBEIRZ IR E RO

TSMEE (R BRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-F——F+-A=+—AILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 20, MIFET R (&)
(c) Fair value (Cont’d) (c) AFEE)
Except as detailed in the following table, the BRI RFFEI  BEERENGE
directors consider that the carrying amounts of MEPIRHE B AR MBEE
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at LBt aE 2 EmEHEE AT EHE
amortised cost in the consolidated financial =
statements approximate their fair values:
2012 2011
—E—-F —E—%F
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
REE AF{E REE NE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHATT FHET
Financial liabilities v Eid=Lid
Convertible notes (Note) AJ 3% 2= 4% (KiEE) - - 61,715 57,001
Note: The fair value of the liability component of st AR R EEE EEh 2 AFE T
convertible notes was calculated by using effective FAERFEFRE20.7%  WER
interest rate of 20.7% per annum with reference to EEBIINEESEZB N EERR
the Hong Kong Exchange Fund note and credit FIEMETE -
risk margin.
30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 30. EXERE

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the directors of the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
and issue of new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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HE—T——F+-_HA=+—HIFZ

30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 30. BEAEH(Z)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which REEFNAEEE B RKRERENS
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net o BB FERULNAERNA RS
debt includes trade and other payables, loan from third o BEFHEBREE S NEMENEE
party and shareholders, less cash and cash equivalents. R FE-ENREEZ ORRSLEES
Capital includes equity attributable to the owners of the EZEY BARABENNTIERG AELE
Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the HeoRIMEBAREEABLEREOT ¢

reporting period are as follows:

The Group
AEE
2012 2011
- e 3 —EB——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T T
Trade and other payables B 5 hEMERIER 40,049 36,172
Amount due to a director Ef—ZESNIE 5,813 5,276
Amount due to immediate JERT B EIERR A RIFIA
holding company 25,859 21,411
Convertible notes AR R = 61,715
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERIBEEEY (46) (655)
Net debt BfEFE 71,675 123,919
Equity attributable to: THIA TR
— owners of the company . WNEIE 2PN (44,944) (99,174)
— non-controlling interests — JEICRRE S 6,858 11,948
Total deficit e (38,086) (87,226)
Capital and net debt BEARBEFE 33,589 36,693
Gearing ratio BEBEEE 213.39% 337.72%
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31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 31. EEMBAT
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 R-E——FR—_FTE——F+=-8
December 2012 and 2011 are as follows: =+—8 ARRZKBRFFBEOT :
Issued and

fully paid Proportion of
share capital/ interest held by
registered  the Company

Place of capital KATHE
incorporation/ Form of ERTR Z st Bl
Name operation legal entity #@RKAE/ Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
& HMAL/EERY EARRER #MEFx EE  RBE  IEER
Asian Information Resources The British Virgin International business US$200  100% - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands company BT REER

EBRARS GESEEING

Asian Information Resources Limited  Hong Kong Limited liability HK$11,228,290 - 100%  Investment holding
THASERAR Bl AREARA 11,208,903 REZR
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$2 - 100%  Provision of treasure functions to
Finance Limited i BREEAA 28T group companies
REBRTREERRS
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$2 - 100%  Provision of administration
Investment Limited i BREMAAT 28T services to group companies
REBRARETHERS
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of administration
Marketing Limited i BREMAT 10,0007t services to group companies
REBRARETHES
Biztech Company Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100,000 - 100%  Investment holding
(BEMBBRAT) Bk AREARF 10,0007t REZR
Vega International Group Ltd. The British Virgin International business US$5  100% - Investment holding
Islands company 5ETT RERR

EBRARS GLEEING

Guangzhou Vega Investment The PRC Limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Provision of corporate finance
Constlting Co. Ltd. i BREMAT AR and management consultancy
(BNERREBRARLR) 10,000,000 senvices

RECEREREERARE

Guangzhou Wavecom The PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 - 100%  Investment holding and provision
Communications and i BREMAH ARE of advertising services
Advertising Limited 500,0007T REBRRREEERS
(BMEEERESARAR)

South Pearl Limited The PRC Limited liability RMB20,000,000 - 55%  Provision of internal protocol
(BMERRGRAEREARAR) & BREAAH AR television service

20,000,0007C R EBEEERS

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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33.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Comparative amounts were audited by another auditors
and have been reclassified to conform with current year’s
presentation.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@ On 16 November 2012, the Company and the
Placing Agent entered into the Placing Agreement
pursuant to which the Placing Agent agreed to
place, on a best effort basis, to not less than six
independent Placees for up to 100,000,000 new
shares at a price of HK$0.65 per Placing Share.

The maximum under of 100,000,000 Placing
Shares represents approximately 7.2% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company of
1,385,518,897 shares as at 31 December 2012
and approximately 6.7% of the Company’s entire
issued share capital as enlarged by the Placing
Shares. The net proceeds from the Placing of
approximately HK$62,225,000 (after all relevant
expenses) will be used for general working capital
and for future potential acquisitions of the Group.

On 28 January 2013, a total of 100,000,000
Placing Shares were successfully placed by the
Placing Agent to not less than six independent
Placees at the Placing Price of HK$0.65 per
Placing Share. Further details are set out in the
Company’s announcements detail 16 November
2012 and 28 January 2013.

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE

32. LLEE=
Aot G- 1 ¢ a0
SN EAEFE LT

33.

BREMRBEENEIER

(@)

RZE——F+—AF+8 &R
AIHEREEREBTYREEHE &
It - BRERIBEISH AR Z AR
EE BRER065ETL  IKER
% 100,000,000 J& ¥7 &% 19 T 1~ 4
INBHEBLA o

ERBZES HE B
100,000,000 % * #HE R A2 AR
T+ -_fA=+—HZRERE
B % 17 I 71,385,518,897 i% 49
7.2% * LA R AN RSB & IR 10 1R
A2 EEBBITRALBT7% - B
& 2 TS 3B F584762,225,0007%5
TL(EHIBRFIBMRERE) - AE
AEBE-—REBEES RARREEA
W B 7 275 o

R-ZE—=F—HA-1+N\B K&
I B I & 7 100,000,000 A
&R EE SR SN 0.65
BTLEE T TN LR ANEZ B AR
A BEFBERARRBEHRA
E-——F+—A+RBER-T—=
F-A-tTN\BzRrE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Cont’d)

(b)

On 31 December 2012, the Company, Biztech
Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, (the “Subsidiary”) and
Guangdong Zhicheng Weiye Investment Limited, a
connected party, (“Guangdong Zhicheng”) entered
into the Management Agreement pursuant to which
the Subsidiary agreed to provide management
service (through Guangzhou Wavecom
Communications and Advertising Limited
(“Guangzhou Wavecom”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Subsidiary) to Guangdong Yingxin
Xinxi Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Guangdong Zhicheng, (“Guangdong Yingxin”) for
a term from the date of approval of the
Management Agreement at Extraordinary General
Meeting ("EGM”) to 31 December 2014 and
Guangzhou Wavecom would receive all the net
profit after taxation of Guangdong Yingxin as
management fee. The Company will procure the
transfer of 9% equity interests in the Subsidiary to
Guangdong Zhicheng (or its nominees) as
consideration.

The Management Agreement is conditional on (i)
the passing of the relevant resolutions at EGM by
Independent Shareholders for approving the
Management Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder; and (ii) all necessary
licenses, consents, approvals, authorisations,
permits, orders, and waivers in connection with the
entering into and performance of the Management
Agreement and transactions contemplated
thereunder having been obtained from the relevant
government authorities or any other statutory and
regulatory authorities (if applicable). Further details
are set out in the Company’s circular dated 22
January 2013.

The Management Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were approved by
Independent Shareholders at EGM held on 18
February 2013. If the second condition cannot be
satisfied by 31 March 2013 or such later day as
agreed between the parties to the Management
Agreement, the Management Agreement will be
lapsed and terminated.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors on 26 March 2013.

34.

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_F——F+_A=1—HAUFE
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